
Shropshire Council
Legal and Democratic Services
Shirehall
Abbey Foregate
Shrewsbury
SY2 6ND

Date:  Thursday, 8 March 2018

Committee: 
Pensions Committee

Date: Friday, 16 March 2018
Time: 9.30 am
Venue: Shrewsbury Room, Shirehall, Abbey Foregate, Shrewsbury, Shropshire, SY2 

6ND

You are requested to attend the above meeting. 
The Agenda is attached.

Claire Porter
Head of Legal and Democratic Services (Monitoring Officer)

Members of the Committee:
Thomas Biggins 
Chris Mellings
Brian Williams
Michael Wood

Co-opted Members (Voting):
Malcolm Smith  
David Wright

Co-opted Members (Non-Voting):
Jean Smith (Pensioner Representative)
Vacancy (Employee Representative)
Vacancy (Employee Representative)



Substitute Members of the Committee:
Roy Aldcroft (SC)
Roger Evans (SC)
Simon Harris (SC)
Alexander Phillips (SC)
Lee Carter (T&W)   
Adrian Lawrence (T&W) 
Vacancy (Pensioner Rep)  
Vacancy (Employee Rep)

 
Your Committee Officer is: 

Sarah Townsend  Committee Officer
Tel:  01743 257721
Email:  sarah.townsend@shropshire.gov.uk



AGENDA
1 Apologies for Absence / Notification of Substitutes 

2 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

Members are reminded that they must not participate in the discussion or voting 
on any matter in which they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and should 
leave the room prior to the commencement of the debate.

3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 4)

The Minutes of the meeting held on 24 November 2017 are attached for 
confirmation, marked 3.

Contact:  Tim Ward (01743 257713)

4 Public Questions 

To receive any questions from members of the public, notice of which has been 
given in accordance with Procedure Rule 14.  The deadline for this meeting is 
9.30 a.m. on Thursday, 15 March 2018.

5 Exclusion of Press and Public 

To consider a resolution under paragraph 10.2 of the Council's Access to 
Information Procedure Rules that the proceedings of the Committee in relation 
to Agenda Items 6 to 11 shall not be conducted in public on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined by the 
categories specified against them.

6 Recap on Insurance Linked Securities and Managers Presenting 
(Exempted by Category 3) 

Aon Hewitt will be in attendance to present this item.

7 Insurance Linked Securities Presentations (Exempted by Category 3) 

Presentations will be received from the various Managers.

8 Insurance Linked Securities Report (Exempted by Category 3) (Pages 5 - 
84)

The exempt report of the Head of Treasury & Pensions is attached, marked 8.

Contact:  Justin Bridges (01743 252072)



9 Recap on Property Debt and Managers Presenting (Exempted by Category 
3) 

Aon Hewitt will be in attendance to present this item.

10 Property Debt Presentations (Exempted by Category 3) 

Presentations will be received from the various Managers.

11 Property Debt Report (Exempted by Category 3) (Pages 85 - 170)

The exempt report of the Head of Treasury & Pensions is attached, marked 11.

Contact:  Justin Bridges (01743 252072)

(From this point, the proceedings of the Committee will be conducted in 
public session in relation to Agenda Items 12 to 17).

12 Grant Thornton - The Audit Plan for Shropshire County Pension Fund 
2017/18 and Informing The Audit Risk Assessment for Shropshire County 
Pension Fund 2017/18 (Pages 171 - 206)

The report of Grant Thornton is attached, marked 12.

Contact:  John Gregory (0121 232 5333) and James McLarnon (0121 232 5219)

13 LGPS Central Update 

Andrew Warwick-Thompson and Joanne Segars will be in attendance to present 
this item.

14 Corporate Governance Monitoring (Pages 207 - 282)

The report of the Investment Officer is attached, marked 14.

Contact:  Ed Roberts (01743 252078)

15 Pension Fund Treasury Strategy 2018/19 (Pages 283 - 292)

The report of the Head of Treasury & Pensions is attached, marked 15.

Contact:  Justin Bridges (01743 252072)



16 Pensions Administration Monitoring (Pages 293 - 322)

The report of the Pensions Administration Manager is attached, marked 16.

Contact:  Debbie Sharp (01743 252192)

17 Employer Events Policy (Pages 323 - 342)

The report of the Pensions Administration Manager is attached, marked 17.

Contact:  Debbie Sharp (01743 252192)

18 Exclusion of Press and Public 

To consider a resolution under paragraph 10.2 of the Council's Access to 
Information Procedure Rules that the proceedings of the Committee in relation 
to Agenda Items 19 to 23 shall not be conducted in public on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined by the 
categories specified against them.

19 Exempt Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Exempted by Categories 2 and 3) 
(Pages 343 - 346)

The exempt Minutes of the meeting held on 24 November 2017 are attached for 
confirmation, marked 19.

Contact:  Tim Ward (01743 257713)

20 Equity Protection Strategy Update (Exempted by Category 3) 

Aon Hewitt will be in attendance to present this item.

21 Investment Monitoring - Quarter to 31 December 2017 (Exempted by 
Category 3) (Pages 347 - 392)

The exempt report of the Head of Treasury & Pensions is attached, marked 21.

Contact:  Justin Bridges (01743 252072)

22 New Admission Bodies (Exempted by Category 3) (Pages 393 - 396)

The exempt report of the Pensions Administration Manager is attached, marked 
22.

Contact:  Debbie Sharp (01743 252192)



23 Record of Breaches (Exempted by Category 3) (Pages 397 - 402)

The exempt report of the Pensions Administration Manager is attached, marked 
23.

Contact:  Debbie Sharp (01743 252192)



Minutes of Pensions Committee held on 24 November 2017

                 

Pensions Committee

16 March 2018

9.30 am

MINUTES OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 24 NOVEMBER 2017 
10.00 AM - 12.45 PM

Responsible Officer:    Tim Ward
Email:  tim.ward@shropshire.gov.uk      Tel:  01743 257713

Present: 
Members of the Committee:
Councillor Thomas Biggins (Chairman)
Councillors Chris Mellings, Brian Williams and Michael Wood 

Co-Opted Members (Voting):
Councillors David Wright

Co-Opted Members (Non-Voting):
Jean Smith

32 Apologies for Absence 

32.1 Apologies for absence had been received from Charles Smith and Nigel Neat.

33 Minutes of the Last Meeting 

33.1 The minutes of the meeting held on 22 September 2017 had been circulated.

33.2 RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting of the Pensions Committee held on 22 September 
2017 be approved as a true record and signed by the Chairman.

34 Investment Strategy Recap 

34.1 Members received a presentation from Louis Paul Hill which gave a recap on the 
Investment Strategy and an update on the various classes of investments available.

35 Insurance Linked Securities 

35.1 The meeting received a presentation from Lorenzo Volpi on Insurance Linked 
Investments in which he outlined the opportunities offered by, and the benefits of 
investing in this this class of investment.  He then took questions from Members.



Minutes of Pensions Committee held on 24 November 2017

36 Property Debt 

36.1 The meeting received a presentation from Dale Lattanzio which gave an overview 
of Property Debt investments and the opportunities presented by this type of 
investment.  He then took questions from Members.  

36.2 Following further discussion it was RESOLVED:

That the Pensions Committee agrees in principle to invest in Property Debt and 
Insurance Linked Securities and Officers in conjunction with advisors commence 
work to select Managers to present at the next Pensions Committee meeting in 
March in order to make a formal decision. The allocations to each asset class, once 
decided, will be funded by reducing the overall equity allocation.
 

37 Corporate Governance Report 

37.1 Members received the report of the Investment Officer which gave an update on 
corporate governance and socially responsible investment issues arising in the 
quarter 1 July 2017 to 30 September 2017.

37.2 RESOLVED

That Members accept the position as set out in the report, Manager Voting Reports 
at Appendix A and BMO Global Asset Management Responsible Engagement 
Overlay Activity Report at Appendix B.

38 Pensions Administration Monitoring Report 

38.1 The Meeting received the report of the Pensions Administration Manager which 
provided Members with monitoring information on the performance of and issues 
affecting the Pensions Administration Team.

38.2 The Pensions Administration Manager advised the meeting that previously 
pensions had been paid through the Shropshire Council Employee payroll system 
but that due to changes in the system being used it was proposed to purchase the 
payroll module for the current pension Administration System and that permission 
was sought to renegotiate the contract for the Pensions Administration System 
using the Northumberland Framework.

38.3 The Pensions Administrations Manager gave an update on the new General Data 
Protection Regulation (GDPR) which would be coming into force in May 2018, and 
the work being carried out by the Scheme in order to be compliant with the 
Regulations.

38.4 RESOLVED:

 That Members accept the position as set out in the report and 
 That Members agree to the use of the Northumberland Framework and 

approve the sealing of contracts with the County seal.
  



Minutes of Pensions Committee held on 24 November 2017

39 Annual Allowance - Voluntary Scheme Pays 

39.1 The meeting received the report of the Pensions Administration Manager which set 
out the availability of “Voluntary Scheme Pays” for those members of the Pension 
Scheme who breached the HMRC annual allowance limit for pension saving growth 
in any financial year and asking Members to agree to offer this option to the 
members of the Shropshire Fund.

39.2 In response to a query the Pensions Administration Manger advised that Scheme 
Members would be advised of the availability of “Voluntary Scheme Pays” through 
the annual pension savings statement.

39.3 RESOLVED

That Members approve the use of ‘Voluntary Scheme Pays’ (VSP) where;

 a member’s pension savings within the Shropshire County Pension Fund are 
subject to the tapered annual allowance, and

 the tax breach stems only from the member’s Shropshire County Pension 
Fund LGPS benefits rather than via growth in multiple pension schemes, and

 The application is received in writing by Shropshire County Pension Fund by 
30 November in the tax year following the year to which the tax charge 
relates to, should the member wish the tax to be paid by 31 January to 
ensure no late payment penalties become due, if not then no later than the 
Mandatory scheme pays deadline. But extend the deadline this year to 31 
December 2017.

40 Exclusion of Press and Public 

40.1 RESOLVED:

That under paragraph 10.2 of the Council's Access to Information Procedure Rules 
that the proceedings of the Committee in relation to Agenda Items 10 to 14 shall not 
be conducted in public on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined by the categories specified against them.

41 Exempt Minutes 

41.1 The exempt minutes of the meeting held on 22 September 2017 had been circulated.

41.2 RESOLVED:

That the exempt minutes of the meeting of the Pensions Committee held on 22 
September 2017 be approved as a true record and signed by the Chairman.

42 Investment Monitoring Report 

42.1 The Committee received the exempt report of the Head of Treasury and Pensions 
(copy attached to the Exempt signed Minutes) which provided Members with 
monitoring information on investment performance and managers for the quarter 
period to 30 September 2017, and reported on the technical meetings held with 
managers since the quarter end. 



Minutes of Pensions Committee held on 24 November 2017

42.2    RESOLVED: 

That the position and updates as set out in the exempt report by the Head of 
Treasury and Pensions be noted.

43 New Admission Bodies 

43.1 The Committee received the exempt report of the Pension Administration Manager which 
provided Members with details regarding two new employer admissions to the Fund, all 
under Schedule 2 Part 3 Regulation 1(d)(i) of the Local Government Pension Scheme 
Regulations 2013 and details of two new admissions that had been approved by the 
Chairman between meetings, under the Urgency Procedures.

43.2 RESOLVED:

That the recommendations in the exempt report of the Pension Administration Manager be 
approved.

44 Record of Breaches 

44.1 Members received the report of the Pensions Administration Manager which 
informed them of breaches arising in the quarter 1st July to 30th September 2017.

 
44.2    RESOLVED:
 
            That Members note the content of Appendix A to the report.
 
(The full version of Minutes 41 to 44 constitutes exempt information under Categories 2 
and 3 of Paragraph 10.4 of the Council’s Access to Information Rules and has accordingly 
been withheld from publication).

Signed (Chairman)

Date: 



































© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Shropshire County Pension Fund  |  2017/18

External Audit Plan
Year ending 31 March 2018
Shropshire County Pension Fund
16 March 2018



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Shropshire County Pension Fund  |  2017/18 2

Contents
Section Page
1. Introduction & headlines [x]
2. Deep business understanding [x]
3. Significant risks identified [x[
4. Reasonably possible risks identified [x]
5. Other matters [x]
6. Materiality [x]
7. Audit logistics, team & audit fees [x]
8. Early close [x]
9. Independence & non-audit services [x]

Appendices
A. Revised ISAs [x]

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit planning process. It is not a
comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect the
Fund or any weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We
do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor
intended for, any other purpose.

Your key Grant Thornton 
team members are:

John Gregory
Director

T:  0121 232 5333
E: john.Gregory@uk.gt.com

Jim McLarnon
Manager

T: 0121 232 5219
E: james.a.mclarnon@uk.gt.com

Dave Rowley
Executive

T: 0121 232 5225
E: david.m.Rowley@uk.gt.com

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members 
is available from our registered office.  Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant 
Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents 
of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Shropshire County Pension Fund  |  2017/18 3

Introduction & headlines
Purpose
This document provides an overview of the planned scope and timing of the statutory audit
of Shropshire County Pension Fund (‘the Fund’) for those charged with governance.

Respective responsibilities
The National Audit Office (‘the NAO’) has issued a document entitled Code of Audit
Practice (‘the Code’). This summarises where the responsibilities of auditors begin and end
and what is expected from the audited body. Our respective responsibilities are also set in
the Terms of Appointment and Statement of Responsibilities issued by Public Sector Audit
Appointments (PSAA), the body responsible for appointing us as auditor of Shropshire
County Pension Fund. We draw your attention to both of these documents on the PSAA
website.

Scope of our audit
The scope of our audit is set in accordance with the Code and International Standards
on Auditing (ISAs) (UK). We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on
the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of
those charged with governance (the Pensions Committee).
The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or the Pensions
Committee of your responsibilities.
Our audit approach is based on a thorough understanding of the Fund's business and
is risk based.

Significant risks Those risks requiring specific audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood of a material financial statement error have been 
identified as:
• Valuation of level 3 investment assets
• Management override of controls
We will communicate significant findings on these areas as well as any other significant matters arising from the audit to you in our Audit 
Findings (ISA 260) Report.

Materiality We have determined planning materiality to be £18.650m (PY £16.711m), which equates to 1% of your net assets. We are obliged to report 
uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance. Clearly trivial has been 
set at £933k (PY £836k).

Audit logistics Our interim visit will take place in February 2018 and our final visit will take place in June 2018.  Our key deliverables are this Audit Plan and 
our Audit Findings Report.
Our fee for the audit will be no less than £23,427 (PY: £23,427) for the Fund.  Where requests are received from other auditors of other bodies 
for assurance in respect of information held by the Fund and provided to the actuary to support their individual IAS 19 calculations these will 
be billed in addition to the audit fee on a case by case basis.

Independence We have complied with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are 
independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Shropshire County Pension Fund  |  2017/18 4

Deep business understanding

• We will consider whether your financial position leads to uncertainty about the going concern assumption and will review any related disclosures in the financial statements. 
• We will keep you informed of changes to the Regulations and any associated changes to financial  reporting or public inspection requirements for 2017/18 through on-going 

discussions.
• As part of our opinion on your financial statements, we will consider whether your financial statements reflect the financial reporting changes in the 2017/18 CIPFA Code.

Changes to service delivery

Our response

Key challengesChanges to financial reporting requirements
Pooling
Arrangements for the pooling of investments continue to develop. The DCLG 
have reported on the progress of pools and noted the pace of development, 
including the launching of procurements for pool operators, appointing senior 
officers and preparing applications for Financial Conduct Authority 
authorisation. This remains a challenging agenda, with arrangements 
required to be in place from 1 April 2018. These arrangements will have a 
significant impact on how investments are managed and monitored, with 
much of the operational responsibility moving to the pool operator.  It 
remains key that administering authorities (through Pension Committees and 
Pension Boards) continue to operate strong governance arrangements, 
particularly during the transition phase where funds are likely to have a mix 
of investment management arrangements.
Markets in Financial Instrument Directive (MiFID II)
January 2018 see the implementation of MiFID II.  The impact for Fund is 
that to be able to continue to access the same investments as previously, 
they need to apply to ‘opt up’ and gain election to professional status.  
Without this change in status some financial institutions could terminate their 
relationship with the fund, which may have an adverse impact on the 
achievement of the investment strategy 

Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 (the 
Regulations)
The Department of Communities and Local 
Government (DCLG) is currently undertaking a review 
of the Regulations, which may be subject to change. 
The date for any proposed changes has yet to be 
confirmed, so it is not yet clear or whether they will 
apply to the 2017/18 financial statements.
Under the 2015 Regulations local authorities are 
required to publish their accounts along with the 
auditors opinion by 31 July 2018.

Changes to the CIPFA 2017/18 Accounting Code 
CIPFA have introduced minor changes to the 2017/18 
Code, these include a new disclosure of investment 
manager transaction costs and clarification on the 
approach to investment concentration disclosure.

Financial pressures
As at November 2017, the value of assets within the fund had 
risen to £1.865bn, in line with an upwards trend in recent 
years. However, the fund’s aim remains to achieve a 100% 
funded status. 

General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR)
GDPR comes into effect in May 2018 and replaces the Data 
Protection Act 1998. It introduces new obligations on data 
controllers. The Fund is both a data controller and a data 
processor and needs to ensure that it has appropriate 
processes in place to comply with the changes being 
introduced.
tPR 2016 Governance and Administration Survey
Published in May 2017 whilst showing improvements in 
governance tPR noted that its focus for 2017-18 would be 
scheme governance, record keeping, internal controls and 
member communication and that tolerance for scheme 
shortcomings in these areas was reducing and that they were 
more likely to use their enforcement powers where scheme 
managers have not taken sufficient action to address issues or 
meet their duties.

On-going Matters
• Indexation and equalisation of GMP in public service pensions schemes
• Reforms to public sector exit packages and the application, or not, of the 

2013 Fair Deal changes to the LGPS
• SAB work on options for academies within the LGPS and review of Tier 

3 employer risks



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Shropshire County Pension Fund  |  2017/18 5

Significant risks identified
Significant risks are defined by professional standards as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration because they have a higher risk of material 
misstatement. Such risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. In identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the potential 
magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood.
Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk
The revenue cycle includes fraudulent 
transactions

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk that revenue
may be misstated due to the improper recognition of revenue.
This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor concludes that there 
is no risk of material misstatement due to fraud relating to revenue 
recognition.

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature
of the revenue streams at the Fund, we have determined that the 
risk of fraud arising from revenue recognition can be rebutted, 
because:
• there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition
• opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited
• the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including 

Shropshire Council as the Administering Authority of Shropshire 
County Pension Fund, mean that all forms of fraud are seen as 
unacceptable

Therefore we do not consider this to be a significant risk for 
Shropshire County Pension Fund.

Management over-ride of controls Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed risk that the 
risk of management over-ride of controls is present in all entities. 
Management over-ride of controls is a risk requiring special audit 
consideration.

We will:
• gain an understanding of the accounting estimates, judgements 

applied and decisions made by management and consider their 
reasonableness 

• obtain a full listing of journal entries, identify and test unusual 
journal entries for appropriateness

• evaluate the rationale for any changes in accounting policies or 
significant unusual transactions.



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Shropshire County Pension Fund  |  2017/18 6

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk
The valuation of Level 3 
investments is 
incorrect

Under ISA 315 significant risks often relate to significant non-routine 
transactions and judgemental matters.  Level 3 investments by their 
very nature require a significant degree of judgement to reach an 
appropriate valuation at year end.

We will:
• gain an understanding of the Fund’s process for valuing level 3 investments

and evaluate the design of the associated controls
• review the nature and basis of estimated values and consider what assurance 

management has over the year end valuations provided for  these types of 
investments.

• consideration of the competence, expertise and objectivity of any 
management experts used.

• review the qualifications of the expert used to value Level 3 investments at 
year end and gain an understanding of how the valuation of these 
investments has been reached.

• for a sample of investments, test the valuation by obtaining and reviewing the 
audited accounts, (where available) at the latest date for individual 
investments and agreeing these to the fund manager reports at that date. 
Reconcile those values to the values at 31 March 2017 with reference to 
known movements in the intervening period.

Significant risks identified (Continued)



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Shropshire County Pension Fund  |  2017/18 7

Reasonably possible risks identified
Reasonably possible risks (RPRs) are, in the auditor's judgment, other risk areas which the auditor has identified as an area where the likelihood of material misstatement cannot be 
reduced to remote, without the need for gaining an understanding of the associated control environment, along with the performance of an appropriate level of substantive work. The risk 
of misstatement for an RPR is lower than that for a significant risk, and they are not considered to be areas that are highly judgmental, or unusual in relation to the day to day activities of 
the business.
Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk
Contributions Contributions from employers and employees’ represents a 

significant percentage (96%) of the Fund’s revenue. 
We will:
• evaluate the Fund's accounting policy for recognition of

contributions for appropriateness;
• gain an understanding of the Fund's system for accounting for

contribution income and evaluate the design of the associated
controls;

• test a sample of contributions to source data to gain assurance
over their accuracy and occurrence;

• rationalise contributions received with reference to changes in
member body payrolls and the number of contributing pensioners
to ensure that any unusual trends are satisfactorily explained.

Pension Benefits Payable Pension benefits payable represents a significant percentage (90%) 
of the Fund’s expenditure.

We will:
• evaluate the Fund's accounting policy for recognition of pension

benefits expenditure for appropriateness;
• gain an understanding of the Fund's system for accounting for

pension benefits expenditure and evaluate the design of the
associated controls;

• test a sample of individual pensions in payment by reference to
member files;

• rationalise pensions paid with reference to changes in pensioner
numbers and increases applied in year to ensure that any
unusual trends are satisfactorily explained.



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Shropshire County Pension Fund  |  2017/18 8

Reasonably possible risks identified (Continued)
Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk
The valuation of Level 2 investments is 
incorrect

While level 2 investments do not carry the same level of inherent 
risks associated with level 3 investments, there is still an element of 
judgement involved in their valuation as their very nature is such that 
they cannot be valued directly.

We will
 gain an understanding of the Fund’s process for valuing Level 2 

investments and evaluate the design of the associated controls.
 review the nature and basis of estimated values and consider 

what assurance management has over the year end valuations 
provided for these types of investments.

 consider the competence, expertise and objectivity of any 
management experts used.

 review the qualifications of the expert used to value the level 2 
investments at year end and gain an understanding of how the 
valuation of these investment has been reached.

 for a sample of investments, test the valuation by obtaining 
independent information from custodian/manager on units and 
unit prices.



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Shropshire County Pension Fund  |  2017/18 9

Other matters
Other material balances and transactions
Under International Standards on Auditing, "irrespective of the assessed risks of material
misstatement, the auditor shall design and perform substantive procedures for each
material class of transactions, account balance and disclosure". All other material
balances and transaction streams will therefore be audited. However, the procedures will
not be as extensive as the procedures adopted for the risks identified in this report.

Going concern
As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the
appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption in the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is
a material uncertainty about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern” (ISA (UK)
570). We will review management's assessment of the going concern assumption and
evaluate the disclosures in the financial statements.

Other work
The Fund is administered by Shropshire Council (the ‘Council’), and the Fund’s
accounts form part of the Council’s financial statements. Therefore as well as our
general responsibilities under the Code of Practice a number of other audit
responsibilities also follow in respect of the Fund, such as:
• We consider our other duties under the Act and the Code, as and when required, 

including:
• giving electors the opportunity to raise questions about your 2017/18 

financial statements, consider and decide upon any objections received in 
relation to the 2017/18 financial statements; 

• issue of a report in the public interest; and 
• making a written recommendation to the Council, copied to the Secretary of 

State.
• We carry out work to satisfy ourselves on the consistency of the pension fund 

financial statements included in the pension fund annual report with the audited 
Fund accounts.



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Shropshire County Pension Fund  |  2017/18 10

Materiality
The concept of materiality
The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and
the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but also to
disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable
law. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually
or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of the financial statements.
Materiality for planning purposes
We propose to calculate financial statement materiality based on a proportion of the net
assets of the Fund for the financial year. In the prior year we used the same benchmark.
We have determined planning materiality (the financial statements materiality determined
at the planning stage of the audit) to be £18.65m (PY £16.711m), which equates to 1% of
your net assets for the prior year. We design our procedures to detect errors in specific
accounts at a lower level of precision.
We reconsider planning materiality if, during the course of our audit engagement, we
become aware of facts and circumstances that would have caused us to make a different
determination of planning materiality
Matters we will report to the Pensions Committee
Whilst our audit procedures are designed to identify misstatements which are material to
our opinion on the financial statements as a whole, we nevertheless report to the Pensions
Committee any unadjusted misstatements of lesser amounts to the extent that these are
identified by our audit work. Under ISA 260 (UK) ‘Communication with those charged with
governance’, we are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than
those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance. ISA 260 (UK) defines
‘clearly trivial’ as matters that are clearly inconsequential, whether taken individually or in
aggregate and whether judged by any quantitative or qualitative criteria. In the context of
the Fund, we propose that an individual difference could normally be considered to be
clearly trivial if it is less than £0.933m (PY £0.836m).
If management have corrected material misstatements identified during the course of the
audit, we will consider whether those corrections should be communicated to the Pensions
Committee to assist it in fulfilling its governance responsibilities.

Net assets
£1.865bn

(PY: £1.768bn)

Materiality

Net assets
Materiality

£18.65m
Whole financial 
statements materiality
(PY: £16.711m)

£0.933m
Misstatements reported 
to the Pensions 
Committee
(PY: £0.836m)



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Shropshire County Pension Fund  |  2017/18 11

Audit logistics, team & audit fees

Audit fees
The planned audit fees are no less than £23,427 (PY: £23,427) for the financial statements 
audit. In setting your fee, we have assumed that the scope of the audit, and the Fund and 
its activities, do not significantly change.
Where requests are received from other auditors of other bodies for assurance in respect 
of information held by the Fund and provided to the actuary to support their individual IAS 
19 calculations these will be billed in addition to the audit fee on a case by case basis.
Our requirements
To ensure the audit is delivered on time and to avoid any additional fees, we have detailed 
our expectations and requirements in the following section ‘Early Close’. If the 
requirements detailed overleaf are not met, we reserve the right to postpone our audit visit 
and charge fees to reimburse us for any additional costs incurred.

John Gregory, Engagement Lead
John will be the main point of contact for the Chair, s151 Officer, 
Head of Treasury and Pensions and Committee members. He will 
share his wealth of knowledge and experience across the sector 
providing challenge and sharing good practice. John will ensure 
our audit is tailored specifically to you, and he is responsible for the 
overall quality of our audit. John will sign your audit opinion.

Jim McLarnon, Audit Manager
Jim will work with senior members of the finance team ensuring 
testing is delivered and any accounting issues are addressed on a 
timely basis. He will attend Pensions Committees with John where 
necessary, and supervise Dave in leading the on-site team. Jim will 
undertake reviews of the team’s work and draft clear, concise and 
understandable reports.

Dave Rowley, Audit Incharge
Dave will be the day to day contact for the audit, organising our 
visits and liaising with Authority staff. He will lead the on-site team 
and will monitor deliverables, manage our query log ensuring that 
any significant issues and adjustments are highlighted to 
management as soon as possible. 

Planning and
risk assessment 

Interim audit
February 2018

Year end audit
June 2018

Pensions
committee
16 March

Audit
committee
July 2018

Audit Findings 
Report & Audit 

Opinion
Audit 
Plan

Pensions
committee
July 2018



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Shropshire County Pension Fund  |  2017/18 12

Early close
Our requirements 
To minimise the risk of a delayed audit or additional audit fees being incurred, you need to 
ensure that you:
• produce draft financial statements of good quality by the deadline you have agreed with 

us, including all notes
• ensure that good quality working papers are available at the start of the audit, in 

accordance with the working paper requirements schedule that we have shared with 
you

• ensure that the agreed data reports are available to us at the start of the audit and are 
reconciled to the values in the accounts, in order to facilitate our selection of samples

• ensure that all appropriate staff are available on site throughout (or as otherwise 
agreed) the planned period of the audit

• respond promptly and adequately to audit queries.

In return, we will ensure that:
• the audit runs smoothly with the minimum disruption to your staff
• you are kept informed of progress through the use of an issues tracker and weekly 

meetings during the audit
• we are available to discuss issues with you prior to and during your preparation of the 

financial statements. 

Meeting the early close timeframe
Bringing forward the statutory date for publication of audited local government 
accounts to 31 July this year, across the whole sector, is a significant challenge 
for local authorities and auditors alike. For authorities, the time available to 
prepare the accounts is curtailed, while, as auditors we have a shorter period to 
complete our work and face an even more significant peak in our workload than 
previously.
We have carefully planned how we can make the best use of the resources 
available to us during the final accounts period. As well as increasing the overall 
level of resources available to deliver audits, we have focused on:
• bringing forward as much work as possible to interim audits
• starting work on final accounts audits as early as possible, by agreeing which 

authorities will have accounts prepared significantly before the end of May
• seeking further efficiencies in the way we carry out our audits
• working with you to agree detailed plans to make the audits run smoothly, 

including early agreement of audit dates, working paper and data 
requirements and early discussions on potentially contentious items.

We are satisfied that, if all these plans are implemented, we will be able to 
complete your audit and those of our other local government clients in sufficient 
time to meet the earlier deadline. 

Client responsibilities
Where individual clients do not deliver to the timetable agreed, we need to ensure 
that this does not impact on audit quality or absorb a disproportionate amount of 
time, thereby disadvantaging other clients. We will therefore conduct audits in line 
with the timetable agreed with management. Where the elapsed time to complete 
an audit exceeds that agreed due to a client not meetings its obligations we will 
not be able to maintain a team on site. Similarly, where additional resources are 
needed to complete the audit due to a client not meeting their obligations we are 
not able to guarantee the delivery of the audit by the statutory deadline. Such 
audits are unlikely to be re-started until very close to, or after the statutory 
deadline. In addition, it is highly likely that these audits will incur additional audit 
fees.



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Shropshire County Pension Fund  |  2017/18 13

Independence & non-audit services
Auditor independence
Ethical Standards and ISA (UK) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of all significant facts and matters that may bear upon the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm 
or covered persons. relating to our independence. We encourage you to contact us to discuss these or any other independence issues with us. We will also discuss with you if we make 
additional significant judgements surrounding independence matters.
We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the 
Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial 
statements. Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in December 2016 which sets out supplementary guidance 
on ethical requirements for auditors of local public bodies. 
We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Ethical Standard. For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant 
Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Fund. 

Non-audit services
No non-audit services were identified.
Any changes and full details of all fees charged for audit related and non-audit related services by Grant Thornton UK LLP and by Grant Thornton International Limited network member 
Firms will be included in our Audit Findings report at the conclusion of the audit.



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Shropshire County Pension Fund  |  2017/18

Appendices

A. Revised ISAs



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Shropshire County Pension Fund  |  2017/18 15

Appendix A:  Revised ISAs
Detailed below is a summary of the key changes impacting the auditor’s report for audits of financial statement for periods commencing on or after 17 June 2016.

Section of the auditor's report Description of the requirements
Conclusions relating to going concern We will be required to conclude and report whether:

• The directors use of the going concern basis of accounting is appropriate 
• The directors have disclosed identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Fund’s ability to continue as a 

going concern. 
Other information We will be required to include a section on other information which includes:

• Responsibilities of management and auditors regarding other information
• A statement that the opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information unless required by law or regulation
• Reporting inconsistencies or misstatements where identified

Additional responsibilities for directors 
and the auditor

We will be required to include the respective responsibilities for directors and us, as auditors, regarding going concern.

Format of the report The opinion section appears first followed by the basis of opinion section.



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Shropshire County Pension Fund  |  2017/18

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.
‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member 
firms, as the context requires.
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a 
separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one 
another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. 

grantthornton.co.uk



Informing the audit risk assessment Shropshire County Pension Fund 2017/18



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 2

Agenda
Purpose 3
Fraud 4
Fraud risk assessment 5-8
Laws and regulations 9
Impact of laws and regulations 10-11
Going concern 12
Going concern considerations 13-14
Related parties 15-16
Accounting estimates 17-18
Appendix A – Accounting estimates 19



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 3

Purpose
The purpose of this report is to contribute towards the effective two-way communication between auditors and the Fund’s Pensions 
Committee, as 'those charged with governance'. The report covers some important areas of the auditor risk assessment where we are required 
to make inquiries of the Pensions Committee under auditing standards.

Background
Under International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (ISA(UK&I)) auditors have specific responsibilities to communicate with the 
Pensions Committee. ISA(UK&I) emphasise the importance of two-way communication between the auditor and the Pensions Committee and 
also specify matters that should be communicated. 
This two-way communication assists both the auditor and the Pensions Committee in understanding matters relating to the audit and 
developing a constructive working relationship. It also enables the auditor to obtain information relevant to the audit from the Pensions 
Committee and supports the Pensions Committee in fulfilling its responsibilities in relation to the financial reporting process. 

Communication
As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to obtain an understanding of management processes and the Pensions 
Committee's oversight of the following areas:
• fraud
• laws and regulations
• going concern
• related parties
• accounting estimates.

This report includes a series of questions on each of these areas and the response we have received from the Fund's management. The 
Pensions Committee should consider whether these responses are consistent with the its understanding and whether there are any further 
comments it wishes to make.



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 4

Fraud
Matters in relation to fraud

ISA(UK&I)240 covers auditors responsibilities relating to fraud in an audit of financial statements.

The primary responsibility to prevent and detect fraud rests with both the Pensions Committee and management. Management, with the 
oversight of the Pensions Committee, needs to ensure a strong emphasis on fraud prevention and deterrence and encourage a culture of 
honest and ethical behaviour. As part of its oversight, the Pensions Committee should consider the potential for override of controls and 
inappropriate influence over the financial reporting process.

As auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement due to 
fraud or error. We are required to maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit, considering the potential for management override of 
controls.
As part of our audit risk assessment procedures we are required to consider risks of fraud. This includes considering the arrangements 
management has put in place with regard to fraud risks including:
• assessment that the financial statements could be materially misstated due to fraud
• process for identifying and responding to risks of fraud, including any identified specific risks
• communication with the Pensions Committee regarding its processes for identifying and responding to risks of fraud
• communication to employees regarding business practices and ethical behaviour.

We need to understand how the Pensions Committee oversees the above processes. We are also required to make inquiries of both 
management and the Pensions Committee as to their knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud. These areas have been set out in 
the fraud risk assessment questions below together with responses from the Fund's management. 



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 5

Fraud risk assessment
Question Management response

Has the Fund assessed the risk of material 
misstatement in the financial statements due to 
fraud?
What are the results of this process?

The Pension fund completes its own accounts and the two main statements of 
account are also included with the main accounts of Shropshire Council, . Fraud 
risks are identified by Internal Audit in their audit plan covering the council and the 
pension fund and all fundamental systems which feed the statement including the 
pension fund accounts are reviewed annually to ensure that controls in place are 
satisfactory.
The statement of pension fund accounts is also subject to an analytical review each 
year which considers any significant or material changes to figures, to confirm that 
the accounts are presented without such misstatements.

How is the Pensions Committee satisfied that the 
overall control environment is robust? In particular, 
what processes does the Fund have in place to 
identify and respond to risks of fraud?

See response above.

Are there any areas where there is a potential for 
override of controls or inappropriate influence over 
the financial reporting process (for example because 
of undue pressure to achieve financial targets)?

There is always the potential for an override of controls within systems however our 
control framework has established secondary compensatory controls in place that 
would identify any such override taken place. Financial reporting is produced and 
balanced from the financial system, and the reporting hierarchy allows for checks to 
be performed throughout the process by the Head of Treasury and Pensions and 
the S151 Officer., and no areas where there is a potential for override of controls or 
inappropriate influence over the financial reporting process have been identified.



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 6

Fraud risk assessment
Question Management response
Have any specific fraud risks, or areas with a high risk 
of fraud, been identified and what has been done to 
mitigate these risks?

No areas with a high risk of material fraud have been identified. If any risks are 
identified, recommendations for mitigation are made to managers who then 
implement as necessary.

Are internal controls, including segregation of duties, 
in place and operating effectively?
If not, where are the risk areas and what mitigating 
actions have been taken?

Internal controls, including whether segregation of duties exist, are reviewed by 
Internal Audit as part of their routine and investigative work; exceptions are 
reported to managers and inform the Internal audit opinion. 

How does the Pensions Committee exercise oversight 
over management's processes for identifying and 
responding to risks of fraud and breaches of internal 
control?
What arrangements are in place to report fraud issues 
and risks to the Pensions Committee?

The Internal Audit Risk Based Plan is approved by Audit Committee of the Council. 
Internal Audit completes a robust review of internal controls on a risk basis and 
reports regularly to the Shropshire Council Audit Committee. The Pension Fund 
Committee is informed of the audit opinions and seek management reassurance on 
the improvement of controls where the consequences are considered high risk. At 
each meeting the Audit Committee of the Council receive an update on instances of 
actual, suspected or alleged fraud investigations that have occurred since the last 
meeting and their outcomes. The Pensions Fund members are informed at their 
meetings of any pension based issues.

How does the Fund communicate and encourage 
ethical behaviour of its staff and contractors?

The Pension Fund follows Shropshire Council’s Whistle Blowing policy and 
guidelines. The Pension Fund shares the whistleblowing policy with the public and 
all contractors. The terms and conditions within Pension Fund contracts also include 
ethical considerations for contractors and suppliers. The vision and values for the 
Pension Fund identify the need for staff to act with integrity in all the undertakings 
we make and this is tested and reviewed via team meetings and engagement 
surveys undertaken across the whole organisation.



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 7

Fraud risk assessment
Question Management response
How do you encourage staff to report their concerns about fraud? 
Have any significant issues been reported?

Staff are encouraged to report their concerns about fraud as set out in 
the Speaking up about wrongdoing (whistleblowing) policy and the 
Council’s Counter Fraud, Bribery and Anti-Corruption Strategy.

Are you aware of any related party relationships or transactions that 
could give rise to risks of fraud?

None identified.

Are you aware of any instances of actual, suspected, or alleged fraud 
either within the Fund as a whole or within specific departments since 
1 April 2017?

None identified.

Are you aware of any whistleblower reports or reports under the 
Bribery Act since 1 April 2017?
If so how does the Pensions Committee respond to these?

None identified.



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 8

Laws and regulations
Matters in relation to laws and regulations

ISA(UK&I)250 requires us to consider the impact of laws and regulations in an audit of the financial statements.

Management, with the oversight of the Pensions Committee, is responsible for ensuring that the Fund's operations are conducted in 
accordance with laws and regulations including those that determine amounts in the financial statements.

As auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement due to 
fraud or error, taking into account the appropriate legal and regulatory framework. As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required 
to make inquiries of management and the Pensions Committee as to whether the entity is in compliance with laws and regulations. Where we 
become aware of information of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance we need to gain an understanding of the noncompliance and 
the possible effect on the financial statements.

Risk assessment questions have been set out below together with responses from management.



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 9

Impact of laws and regulations
Question Management response
What arrangements does the Fund have in place to prevent and 
detect non-compliance with laws and regulations?

Each year the Council’s corporate governance arrangements and 
risk management arrangements are reviewed and reported upon by 
Internal Audit and Risk Management teams. This would include the 
Pension Fund if applicable. The Pension Fund has a robust 
corporate governance and risk management process in place, which 
are based on approved polices and procedures.  

How does management gain assurance that all relevant laws and 
regulations have been complied with?

The Council has a Monitoring Officer and S151 Officer who provide 
assurance that all relevant laws and regulations have been complied 
with.
The Pensions Fund has adopted the Local Government Pensions 
Scheme Regulations. The Pension Committee receive regular 
reports of compliance from offers, who are suitably qualified.   Any 
non compliance would be reported to management via Internal Audit 
reports and appropriate plans are put in place to remedy such 
issues. These would cover the pension fund as applicable.

How is the Pensions Committee provided with assurance that all 
relevant laws and regulations have been complied with?

See above

Have there been any instances of non-compliance or suspected 
non-compliance with law and regulations since 1 April 2017, or 
earlier with an on-going impact on the 2017/18 financial statements?

The Section 151 Officer  is not aware of any instances of non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations in 2016-17. The Chair 
of the Pension Fund Committee is not aware of any instances of 
non-compliance during 2016/17.



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 10

Impact of laws and regulations
Question Management response
What arrangements does the Fund have in place to identify, 
evaluate and account for litigation or claims? Risk management, insurance and legal work together to identify and 

evaluate any  potential litigation or claims against the Council. Any 
potential liabilities are highlighted each year in the Council’s 
Statement of Accounts, which includes consideration of the Pension 
Fund, which is consolidated into the Council's financial statements.

Is there any actual or potential litigation or claims that would affect 
the financial statements? The Section 151 Officer is not aware of any actual or potential 

litigation or claims that would affect the financial statements.
Have there been any reports from other regulatory bodies, such as 
HM Revenues and Customs which indicate noncompliance? No such reports have been received.



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 11

Going concern
Matters in relation to laws and regulations

ISA(UK&I)570 covers auditor responsibilities in the audit of financial statements relating to management's use of the going concern 
assumption in the financial statements.

Going concern is a fundamental principle in the preparation of financial statements. Under the going concern assumption, a Fund is viewed as 
continuing in operation for the foreseeable future with no necessity of liquidation or ceasing trading. Accordingly, the Fund’s assets and 
liabilities are recorded on the basis that assets will be realised and liabilities discharged in the normal course of business. 

Although the Fund is not subject to the same future trading uncertainties as private sector entities, consideration of the key features of the 
going concern provides an indication of the Fund's financial position and is good practice.

Below are key questions on the going concern assumption which we would like the Pensions Committee to consider.



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 12

Going concern considerations
Question Management response
Does the Fund have procedures in place to assess the Fund's ability 
to continue as a going concern?

The Pension Fund Committee consider a number of financial reports 
which provide them with assurance that the Pension Fund continues 
as a going concern. An Actuarial Valuation is undertaken every 3 
years to ascertain the funding position and the levels of contributions 
required to achieve a 100% funding level. The Funding Strategy 
Statement outlines the key financial assumptions used and the 
results are presented to the Pension Committee. 

Is management aware of the existence of other events or conditions 
that may cast doubt on the Fund's ability to continue as a going 
concern?

No events or conditions have been identified.

Are arrangements in place to report the going concern assessment 
to the Pensions Committee?
How has the Pensions Committee satisfied itself that it is 
appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the 
financial statements?

The Pension Fund Committee consider a number of financial reports 
which provide them with assurance that the Pension Fund continues 
as a going concern. They also receive reports stating that all 
controls and risks have been managed appropriately and as 
Members will have access to all reports produced across the 
Pension Fund whether public or exempt.

Are the financial assumptions in that report (e.g., future levels of 
income and expenditure) consistent with the Fund's Business Plan 
and the financial information provided to the Pensions Committee 
throughout the year?

The financial assumptions are consistent with the financial 
information provided to the Pension Committee throughout the year.



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 13

Going concern considerations
Question Management response
Are the implications of statutory or policy changes appropriately 
reflected in the Business Plan, financial forecasts and report on 
going concern?

All SCPF policies are reported and approved by Pension Committee 
and included within the Annual Report. The Pension Fund accounts 
are reported to and approved by Pension Committee annually and 
include details of financial forecasts used. 

Have there been any significant issues raised with the Pensions
Committee during the year which could cast doubts on the 
assumptions made? (Examples include adverse comments raised 
by internal and external audit regarding financial performance or  
significant weaknesses in systems of financial control).

No issues have been raised with the Pension Committee during the 
year.

Does a review of available financial information identify any adverse 
financial indicators including negative cash flow?
If so, what action is being taken to improve financial performance?

An Actuarial Valuation is undertaken every 3 years to ascertain the 
funding position and the levels of contributions required to achieve a 
100% funding level. The Funding Strategy Statement outlines the 
key financial assumptions used and the results are presented to the 
Pension Committee. The Pension Fund accounts detail all the 
financial information and monthly monitoring is undertaken 
throughout the year. Any negative cash flow position is managed 
within the overall cash balance within the Fund. The Pension 
Committee receive investment performance reports on a quarterly 
basis updating them on the performance of the Fund.

Does the Fund have sufficient staff in post, with the appropriate 
skills and experience, particularly at senior manager level, to ensure 
the delivery of the Funds's objectives?
If not, what action is being taken to obtain those skills?

The Fund has sufficient staff in post with the appropriate skills and 
experience to ensure the delivery of the Funds objectives.



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 14

Related parties
Matters in relation to Related Parties
Local Government bodies are required to comply with International Accounting Standard 24 and disclose transactions with entities/individuals 
that would be classed as related parties. These may include:
■ entities that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by the Fund (i.e. subsidiaries);
■ associates and/or joint ventures;
■ an entity that has an interest in the Fund that gives it significant influence over the Fund;
■ key management personnel, and close members of the family of key management personnel, and
■ post-employment benefit plans (pension fund) for the benefit of employees of the Fund, or of any entity that is a related party of the Fund.

A disclosure is required if a transaction (or series of transactions) is material on either side i.e. if a transaction is immaterial from the Fund's 
perspective but material from a related party viewpoint then the Fund must disclose it.
ISA (UK&I) 550 requires us to review your procedures for identifying related party transactions and obtain an understanding of the controls that 
you have established to identify such transactions. We will also carry out testing to ensure the related party transaction disclosures you make 
in the financial statements are complete and accurate. 

Related party considerations have been set out below and management has provided its response.



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 15

Related parties
Question Management response
What controls does the Fund have in place to identify, account for, 
and disclose related party transactions and relationships?

A number of arrangements are in place for identifying the nature of a 
related party and reported value including:
• Maintenance of a Register of interests for Members, a register for 

pecuniary interests in contracts for Officers and Senior Managers 
requiring disclosure of related party transactions.

• Annual return from senior managers/officers requiring 
confirmation that read and understood the declaration 
requirements and stating details of any known related party 
interests.

Who have the Fund identified as related parties? The Pension Fund main related party is Shropshire Council, with 
some disclosure in relation to employee who hold key 
responsibilities.



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 16

Accounting estimates
Matters in relation to accounting estimates
Local Government bodies need to apply appropriate estimates in the preparation of their financial statements. ISA (UK&I) 540 sets out 
requirements for auditing accounting estimates. The objective is to gain evidence that the accounting estimates are reasonable and the related 
disclosures are adequate. Under this standard we have to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement for accounting estimates by 
understanding how the Fund identifies the transactions, events and conditions that may give rise to the need for an accounting estimate.

Accounting estimates are used when it is not possible to measure precisely a figure in the accounts. We need to be aware of all material 
estimates that the Fund is using as part of its accounts preparation; these are detailed in Appendix A to this report. The audit procedures we 
conduct on the accounting estimate will demonstrate that:
•  the estimate is reasonable; and
•  estimates have been calculated consistently with other accounting estimates within the financial statements.

Accounting estimates considerations have been set out below and management has provided its response.



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 17

Accounting estimates
Question Management response
Are management aware of transactions, events and conditions (or 
changes in these) that may give rise to recognition or disclosure of 
significant accounting estimates that require significant judgement?

Officers are aware of the accounting estimates used and the 
judgements made and they consider them to be reasonable.

Are the management arrangements for the accounting estimates, as 
detailed in Appendix A reasonable?

The management arrangements for the accounting estimates 
detailed in Appendix A are considered reasonable.

How is the Pensions Committee provided with assurance that the 
arrangements for accounting estimates are adequate?

The Pension Committee are made aware of the accounting estimates 
used when approving the Pension Fund accounts and provided with 
assurance they are adequate by the Scheme Administrator.



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 18

Appendix A - Accounting estimates
Estimate Method / model used to make 

the estimate
Controls used to identify 
estimates

Whether 
management 
have used an 
expert

Underlying 
assumptions:
- Assessment of 
degree of 
uncertainty
- Consideration 
of alternative 
estimates

Has there 
been a 
change in 
accounting
method in 
year?

Private Equity Private Equity investments are valued 
at fair value in accordance with British 
Venture Capital Association guidelines.  
These investments are not publicly 
listed and as such there is a degree of 
estimation involved in the valuation. 

December valuation is received 
and cash flow adjustments are 
used to roll forward the valuation 
to 31 March as appropriate. 
Valuation is then compared to 
the year end capital statement to 
determine any significant 
fluctuations. 

Custodian and 
Fund Manager 
Capital Statement

Various No

Hedge Funds The fund of funds is valued at the sum 
of the fair values provided by the 
Administrators of the underlying funds 
plus any adjustments deemed 
necessary. These investments are not 
publicly listed and as such there is a 
degree of estimation involved in the 
valuation. 

The values of the investment in 
hedge funds are based on the 
net asset value provided by the 
fund manager.  Assurance over 
the valuation are gained from the 
independent audit of the value.

Fund audited 
accounts and 
control reports

Various No

Accruals Finance team collate accruals of 
expenditure and income. Activity is 
accounted for in the financial year that it 
takes place, not when money is paid or 
received.

Review financial systems to 
identified where goods have 
been received but not paid for.
Requests of service managers to 
identify any other goods or 
services received or provided but 
not paid for.

No Accruals for income 
and expenditure often 
based on known 
values. 
Where accruals are 
estimated the latest 
available information is 
used.

No



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. | Draft
‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, 
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL).GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each 
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not 
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

grantthornton.co.uk





Committee and Date

Pensions Committee

16 March 2018

9.30am

Item

14
Public

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MONITORING

Responsible Officer Ed Roberts
e-mail: ed.roberts@shropshire.gov.uk Tel:  (01743) 252078

1.  Summary

1.1 The report is to inform members of Corporate Governance and socially 
responsible investment issues arising in the quarter 1st October 2017 to 31st 

December 2017. 

2.  Recommendations

2.1 Members are asked to accept the position as set out in the report, Manager 
Voting Reports at Appendix A and BMO Global Asset Management 
Responsible Engagement Overlay Activity Report at Appendix B.

REPORT

3.  Risk Assessment and Opportunies Appraisal

3.1 Risk Management is part of the Pension Fund’s structured decision-making 
process by ensuring that investment decisions are taken by those best 
qualified to take them.

3.2 The recommendations contained in this report are compatible with the 
provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998.

3.3 The Fund’s Corporate Governance Policy enables it to influence the 
environmental policies of the companies in which it invests.

3.4 There are no direct Equalities or Community consequences.

4.  Financial Implications

4.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

5.  Background

5.1 The Shropshire County Pension Fund has been actively voting for over fifteen 
years at the Annual General Meetings and Extraordinary General Meetings of 
the companies in which it invests. Voting is carried out by individual Fund 
Managers on all equity portfolios.

mailto:ed.roberts@shropshire.gov.uk


Pensions Committee, 16 March 2018: Corporate Governance Monitoring

5.2 The Fund is also addressing its social responsibility through a strategy of 
responsible engagement with companies. BMO Global Asset Management 
provide this responsible engagement overlay on the Fund’s UK equities 
portfolio.

6.  Manager Voting Activity

6.1 Details of managers voting activity during the quarter relating to equity 
portfolios are attached (Appendix A).

7.  Responsible Engagement Activity

7.1 During the last quarter BMO Global Asset Management have continued to 
actively engage with companies on the Fund’s behalf. An update on the 
engagement activities for the quarter is attached at Appendix B in the REO 
Activity report.  

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information)
Corporate Governance Monitoring report, Pensions Committee 24 November 2017

Cabinet Member
N/A

Local Member
N/A

Appendices
A. Manager Voting Activity Reports.
B. BMO Global Asset Management Responsible Engagement Overlay Reports.



Appendix A

















































































Appendix B





































































Committee and Date

Pensions Committee

16 March 2018

9.30am

Item

15

Public

PENSION FUND TREASURY STRATEGY 2018/19

Responsible Officer Justin Bridges
e-mail: Justin.bridges@shropshire.gov.uk Tel:  (01743) 

252072

1.  Summary

1.1 This report proposes the Pension Fund Treasury Strategy for 2018/19 for the 
small cash balances that the Administrating Authority maintains to manage the 
day to day transactions of the Fund. These transactions include the payment 
of pensions and transfers out together with the receipt of contributions from 
employers and transfers into the Fund. From the 1 April 2010 these balances 
have been invested separately in accordance with the Pension Fund Treasury 
Strategy. 

2.  Recommendations

2.1 Members are asked to delegate authority to the Scheme Administrator 
(Section 151 Officer) to manage the Pension Funds day to day cash balances. 

2.2 Members are asked to approve, with any comments, the Pension Fund 
Treasury Strategy.

2.3 Members are asked to authorise the Scheme Administrator (Section 151 
Officer) to place deposits in accordance with the Pension Fund’s Treasury 
Strategy.

2.4 Members are also asked to delegate authority to the Scheme Administrator 
(Section 151 Officer) to add or remove institutions from the approved lending 
list and amend cash and period limits as necessary in line with the 
Administering Authority’s creditworthiness policy.

REPORT

3.  Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal

3.1 Risk Management is part of the Pension Fund’s structured decision-making 
process by ensuring that investment decisions are taken by those best 
qualified to take them.

3.2 The recommendations contained in this report are compatible with the 
provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998.



Pensions Committee, 16 March 2018: Pension Fund Treasury Strategy 2018/19

Contact:  Justin Bridges on (01743) 252072

3.3 Compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management, 
adhering to the Council’s Treasury Policy Statement and Treasury 
Management Practices together with the rigorous internal controls will enable 
the Fund to manage the risk associated with Treasury Management activities 
and the potential for financial loss

3.4 There are no direct environmental, equalities or climate change consequences 
arising from this report.

4.  Financial Implications

4.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

5.  Background

5.1 The Fund has assets of over £1.8 billion which are managed by the Funds 
Global Custodian, Northern Trust. Shropshire Council as the Administering 
Authority maintains a small working cash balance (currently around £4 million). 
This Treasury Strategy relates solely to the Pension Fund cash managed by 
Shropshire Council as the Administering Authority.

5.2 The Administering Authority aims to keep the Pension Fund cash held for day-
to-day transactions to a minimum level. Fund cash is currently managed 
separately and invested on the money markets in accordance with Shropshire 
Council’s Treasury Strategy. A separate Pension Fund account is credited with 
investment income. 

5.3 Investment regulations issued by the DCLG in December 2009 no longer 
permit pension fund cash to be pooled with the cash balances of Shropshire 
Council from 1st April 2010. In view of these changes a separate Pension 
Fund Treasury Strategy must be approved each year. 

6.  Investment Policy

6.1 The Fund’s investment policy is based on the Treasury Strategy adopted by 
Shropshire Council. The investment policy will have regard to the 
Communities for Local Government (CLG) Guidance on Local Government 
Investments, and the revised CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice. 

6.2 The investment priorities for the management of Pension Fund cash balances 
are the security of capital and the liquidity of its investments. The Fund will 
also aim to achieve the optimum return on its cash investments commensurate 
with proper levels of security and liquidity.  

6.3 The CLG guidance requires Shropshire Council to categorise their 
investments as either “specified” or “non specified” investments. Shropshire 
Council as Administering Authority for the Pension Fund will adopt these same 
categorisations for the investment of Pension Fund cash. Specified 
investments are deemed as “safer” investments and must meet the following 
conditions:-



Pensions Committee, 16 March 2018: Pension Fund Treasury Strategy 2018/19

Contact:  Justin Bridges on (01743) 252072

- be denominated in Sterling

- have less than 12 months duration

- not constitute the acquisition of share or loan capital

- be invested in the government or a local authority or a body or 
investment scheme with a “high” credit quality.

6.4 The Fund is required to specify its creditworthiness policy and how frequently 
credit ratings should be monitored. It must also specify the minimum level of 
such investments. 

6.5 The Fund is required to look at non specified investments in more detail. It 
must set out:

- Procedures for determining which categories of non-specified 
investments should be used

- The categories deemed to be prudent

- The maximum amount deemed to be held in each category

- The maximum period for committing funds

6.6 As all of the Funds’ investments will be placed in sterling for periods up to 12 
months with highly credit rated institutions all investments will be classified as 
specified investments. It is recommended that the maximum limit of £4 million 
is set for other Local Authorities and institutions which are part nationalised 
and £2 million for institutions which meet the minimum credit ratings but are 
not supported by the Government. Any changes to the minimum credit ratings 
or maximum limits must be approved by the Scheme Administrator (Section 
151 Officer).

6.7 The Fund may use for the prudent management of its cash balances any of 
the specified investments detailed on Appendix A.

6.8 In order not to reply solely on institutions credit ratings there have also been a 
number of other developments since the credit crunch crisis which require 
separate consideration and approval. Nationalised and Part Nationalised 
Banks in the UK effectively take on the creditworthiness of the Government 
itself i.e. deposits made with them are effectively being made to the 
Government.  This is because the Government owns significant stakes in the 
banks and this ownership is set to continue.  Link Asset Services are still 
supportive of the Fund using these institutions with a maximum 12 month 
duration. For this reason National Westminster Bank which are part of the 
RBS group are included on the approved counterparty list.

6.9 Local Authorities are not credit rated but where the investment is a 
straightforward cash loan, statute suggests that the credit risk attached to 
English and Welsh local authorities is an acceptable one (Local Government 
Act 2003 s13). Local authorities are therefore included on the approved list.  



Pensions Committee, 16 March 2018: Pension Fund Treasury Strategy 2018/19

Contact:  Justin Bridges on (01743) 252072

7.  Creditworthiness Policy

7.1 It is proposed that the Fund will adopt the same methodology as Shropshire 
Council when determining the minimum credit ratings to be used. The 
Creditworthiness policy has been adopted from Shropshire Council’s Treasury 
Strategy who use information provided by their treasury advisor, Link Asset 
Services. This service has been progressively enhanced following the 
problems with Icelandic Banks in 2008. Link use a sophisticated modelling 
approach with credit ratings from all three rating agencies Fitch, Moody’s and 
Standard and Poor’s. In accordance with the revised Treasury Management 
Code of Practice they do not rely solely on the current credit ratings of 
counterparties but also use the following as overlays:-

 Credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies

 Credit Default Swap (CDS) spreads to give an early warning of 
likely changes in credit ratings

 Soveriegn ratings to select counterparties from only the most 
creditworthy countries

7.2 This modelling approach combines credit ratings, credit watches, credit 
outlooks and CDS spreads in a weighted scoring system for which the end 
product is a series of colour code bands which indicate the relative 
creditworthiness of counterparties. These colour codes are also used to 
determine the duration of investments and are therefore referred to as 
durational bands. The Fund is satisfied that this service now gives a much 
improved level of security for its investments. It is also a service which would 
not be able to replicate using in-house resources. 

7.3 The selection of counterparties with a high level of creditworthiness will be 
achieved by a selection of institutions down to a minimum durational band with 
Link’s weekly list of worldwide potential counterparties.  The Fund will 
therefore use counterparties within the following durational colour bands:-

 Yellow – 5yrs e.g. AAA rated Government debt, UK Gilts, Collateralised 
Deposits

 Dark Pink – 5 years for Enhanced Money Market Funds with a credit score of 
1.25 (Not currently used)

 Light Pink - 5 years for Enhanced Money Market Funds with a credit score of 
1.5 (Not currently used)

 Purple - 2yrs (Council & Pension Fund currently has maximum of 1 year)
 Blue - 1 year (only applies to nationalised or part nationalised UK Banks)
 Orange - 1 year
 Red - 6 months
 Green – 100 days
 No colour – not to be used  

7.4 Although the maximum period limit is currently 5 years the Fund will take a 
more prudent approach and not invest for any longer than 12 months.

7.5 All credit ratings are monitored continuously and formally updated as and 
when changes are required by the Administering Authority.  The Administering 
Authority is alerted to changes to ratings of all three agencies through its use 



Pensions Committee, 16 March 2018: Pension Fund Treasury Strategy 2018/19

Contact:  Justin Bridges on (01743) 252072

of the Link’s creditworthiness service.  The Fund will use the same policy 
when constructing its approved lending list.  If a counterparty’s or investment 
scheme’s rating is downgraded with the result that it no longer meets the 
Funds minimum criteria, the further use of that counterparty will be withdrawn 
immediately.

7.6 Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of this external service. Officers 
also use market data and information and regularly monitor the financial press.

8.  Country Limits

8.1 It is recommended that the Fund will only use approved counterparties from 
countries with a minimum sovereign credit rating of AA- from Fitch Ratings (or 
equivalent from other agencies).  It is recommended that UK institutions 
continue to be used unless the sovereign credit rating falls below A. Lending is 
currently restricted to the UK which currently has a sovereign credit rating of 
AA and Sweden which has the highest possible sovereign rating of AAA.   The 
S151 Officer has delegated authority to revert back to placing investments in 
countries with a minimum sovereign credit rating of AA- in line with Link’s 
revised creditworthiness policy if required.  

9.  Investment Strategy

9.1 As expected, the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) delivered a 0.25% 
increase in Bank rate in November 2017.  It is felt that the bank rate will 
remain at its current level of 0.5% until December 2018 when it is expected to 
rise to 0.75%.  The Bank rate is then expected to rise to 1.0% by December 
2019. This view is based on the latest forecasts obtained by the Administering 
Authority’s treasury advisor, Link Asset Services.

  
9.2 It is anticipated that balances available for investment will be between £1 - 8 

million which will be invested short term in accordance with the approved 
lending list.  Separate lending and period limits have been approved for 
investment of Pension Fund cash.      

9.3 Short term cash flow requirements limit the scope for longer term investments.   
For cash flow generated balances we will seek to utilise the business reserve 
accounts with National Westminster Bank and Svenska Hadelsbanken and 
short dated deposits (overnight - 3 months) in order to benefit from the 
compounding of interest. 

9.4 All investments will be made in accordance with the Funds treasury strategy 
and in accordance with the CLG investment regulations. 

10.  Short Term Borrowing

10.1 The current banking and investment arrangements mean the Fund has not 
needed to borrow on the money markets to fund day to day transactions. The 
new investment regulations give the Administering Authority an explicit power 
to borrow for up to 90 days, for the purpose of the pension fund. This will 
enable borrowing for cash flow purposes such as to ensure that scheme 
benefits can be made on time. Any borrowing needs to have an identifiable 



Pensions Committee, 16 March 2018: Pension Fund Treasury Strategy 2018/19

Contact:  Justin Bridges on (01743) 252072

income from which repayment of the borrowed amount and related interest 
can be funded.

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information)
Pension Fund Treasury Strategy 2017/18, Pensions Committee 17 March 2017

Cabinet Member
N/A

Local Member
N/A

Appendices
A. Specified Investment Schedule



Pensions Committee 16 March 2018:  Pension Fund Treasury Strategy 2018/2019

Contact:  Justin Bridges on (01743) 252072

Appendix A

SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS 

All investments listed below must be sterling-denominated. 

Investment Share/ Loan 
Capital?     

Repayable/
Redeemable 
within 12 
months?

Security / 
Minimum Credit 
Rating 

Capital 
Expenditure?

Circumstance of use Maximum period

Term deposits with the UK government  
(e.g. DMO Account) or with English local 
authorities (i.e. local authorities as defined 
under Section 23 of the 2003 Act) with 
maturities up to 1 year

No Yes High security 
although LAs not 
credit rated. 

NO In-house  1 year

Term deposits with credit-rated deposit 
takers (banks and building societies), 
including callable deposits, with 
maturities up to 1 year

No Yes Yes – Minimum 
colour band Green

NO In-house  1 year

Certificates of Deposit issued by credit-
rated deposit takers (banks and building 
societies) up to 1 year.

Custodial arrangement required prior to 
purchase

No Yes Yes – Minimum 
colour band Green

NO In house buy and hold 1 year

Banks nationalised by high credit 
rated (sovereign rating) countries

No Yes Minimum Sovereign 
Rating AA-

No In house 1 year

UK Nationalised & Part Nationalised 
banks

No Yes Yes – Minimum 
colour band green

No In house 1 Year



Pensions Committee 16 March 2018:  Pension Fund Treasury Strategy 2018/2019

Contact:  Justin Bridges on (01743) 252072

Investment Share/ Loan 
Capital?     

Repayable/
Redeemable 
within 12 
months?

Security / 
‘High’ Credit Rating 
criteria

Capital 
Expenditure?

Circumstance of use Maximum period

Government guarantee on all deposits 
by high credit rated (sovereign rating) 
countries

No Yes Yes – Minimum 
Sovereign Rating AA-

No In house 1 year

Bonds issued by multilateral 
development banks (Euro Sterling 
Bonds as defined in SI 2004 No 534) or 
issued by a financial institution 
guaranteed by UK government with 
maturities under 12 months.

Custodial arrangement required prior to 
purchase

Gilt Funds and Bond Funds (including 
Ultra-Short Dated Bond Funds)

No

No

Yes

Yes

AAA

AAA

NO

NO

In-House on a buy and 
hold basis after 
consultation/advice 
from Capita& 

In House 

1 year

1 year

Gilts : up to 1 year

Custodial arrangement required prior to 
purchase

No Yes Govt-backed
UK Sovereign Rating 

NO                                           
In House on a buy and 
hold basis 

1 year



Pensions Committee 16 March 2018:  Pension Fund Treasury Strategy 2018/2019

Contact:  Justin Bridges on (01743) 252072

Money Market Funds (CNAV) & 
Government Liquidity Funds 
(including CCLA Fund) & Enhanced 
Money Market Funds (LVNAV & VNAV)

No Yes Yes
AAA rated & UK 
sovereign rating.  
Enhanced MMFs 
minimum colour Dark 
Pink/Light Pink & 
AAA rated

NO In-house the period of 
investment may not 
be determined at 
the outset but 
would be subject to 
cash flow and 
liquidity 
requirements.

Deposits are 
repayable at call.

Treasury bills 
[Government debt security with a maturity 
less than one year and issued through a 
competitive bidding process at a discount to 
par value]

Custodial arrangement required prior to 
purchase

No Yes Govt-backed 
UK Sovereign Rating

NO In House 1 year

Monitoring of credit ratings:
All credit ratings will be monitored continuously.  If a counterparty or investment scheme is downgraded with the result that it no longer meets the Pension Fund’s minimum 
credit criteria, the use of that counterparty / investment scheme will be withdrawn. 
Any intra-month credit rating downgrade which the Pension Fund has identified that affects the Pension Fund pre-set criteria will also be similarly dealt with. 





Committee and Date
Pensions Committee

16 March 2018

9.30am

Item

16

Public

PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION MONITORING REPORT

Responsible Officer Debbie Sharp
Email: debbie.sharp@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 01743 252192

1. Summary

1.1 The report provides Members with monitoring information on the 
performance of and issues affecting the Pensions Administration Team.

2. Recommendations

2.1 Members are asked to accept the position as set out in the report and;

2.2 Approve the decision to not collect overpayment of pension due to 
incorrect GMP information being held in accordance with guidance that 
the Pensioner would not have known their pension was incorrect due to 
the complexity of the Contracting out legislation.

  
REPORT

3. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal

3.1 Risk Management 
Performance is considered and monitored to ensure regulatory 
timescales and key performance indicators are adhered to.  
Administration risks are identified and managed and are reported to 
committee on an annual basis.

3.2 Human Rights Act Appraisal
The recommendations contained in this report are compatible with the 
Human Rights Act 1998.

3.3 Environmental Appraisal
There is no direct environmental, equalities or climate change 
consequence of this report.

3.4  Financial Implications
Managing team performance and working with other Administering 
Authorities ensures costs to scheme employers for Scheme 
Administration are reduced.  However, it must be noted that the 
introduction of the 2014 LGPS and the increased governance 



Pensions Committee; 16 March 2018: Pensions Administration Monitoring Report
introduced by the Public Services Pension Act 2013 has increased the 
resources required by the administration team. Reconciling the Funds 
Guaranteed Minimum Pension Liabilities with HMRC will have a direct 
cost for the Fund but if this is not undertaken the Fund risks taking on 
financial liabilities it didn’t need to and having its data called into 
question by the Fund Actuary. LGPS having to fully index GMP’s will 
increase costs for the Fund going forward. Further compliance with 
TPR code has highlighted areas where further costs could be incurred. 

4. Performance and Team Update

4.1 The team’s output and performance level to the end of January 2018 
is attached at Appendix A. The chart shows that tasks that became 
due and procedures outstanding both rose to quite high levels during 
the quarter to December 2017.  This was mainly due to staff taking 
leave, vacant posts still unfilled and the closedown at Christmas. In 
January 2018 the level of outstanding tasks reduced.  This situation is 
being monitored and it is expected all vacancies will be filled by the end 
of March.

4.2 All Fund Employers have been contacted regarding the requirements 
for the year end 2018.  Most member data is now supplied monthly via 
iConnect. The year-end data requirements should be completed when 
the Employers upload their month 12 data submission so that all 
records have contributions and pay posted to each individual member’s 
record.  Plans are in place to then complete the usual year-end data 
checks in line with the project plan in place for the Annual Benefit 
Statement production in August.

4.3 As well as the data requirements for individual scheme members the 
employers are required to complete a reconciliation for the year.  They 
must reconcile the total amount deducted from pay for each scheme 
member to that paid over to the Fund.  All employers have been sent a 
year end statement for completion and return by 30 April 2018.  This is 
to ensure that any under/overpayments can be reconciled in time for 
the close of the Pension Fund Accounts.  The Employers also have to 
complete a compliance statement that they have robust systems in 
place and that all deductions are correct and in compliance with the 
appropriate legislation.   

4.4 It was previously reported that the team had been looking into ensuring 
the hosting of the Altair Pensions Systems was future proofed and 
robust. Disaster Recovery tests had highlighted weaknesses in current 
hosting set-up with the Council. External hosting was explored but after 
lengthy discussions with Shropshire Council’s IT service and the IT 
strategy agreed upon by the Council in the second half of 2017, it was 
decided that the best solution would be to stay in house but to move to 
the Virtual Environment.  This has been successfully undertaken and 
service went live during February 2018.  A project will now take place 
to look at the changes needed to our Disaster Recovery plans taking 
into account the Council’s plans on its virtual Environment.



Pensions Committee; 16 March 2018: Pensions Administration Monitoring Report

5.        Help Desk Statistics

5.1 The following chart shows the number of queries received through the 
helpline number. 

Nov 2017  Dec 2017 Jan 2018
Telephone calls 
received 755 419 799

Queries dealt 
with by 
helpdesk at first 
point of contact 
%*

90.33% 89.50% 89.98%

Users visiting 
the Website 2536 1841 2415

 * Where queries have not been dealt with by helpdesk, this will usually mean 
that the calls have been picked up by the rest of the team.

5.2 The average number of calls taken by the helpdesk per day is 32 for 
the quarter to 31 January 2018.  The Helpdesk also responds to a 
number of emails on a daily basis the following table shows these 
numbers:

Nov 2017 Dec 2017 Jan 2018
Emails Received 467 250 504
% of emails 
responded to 
within 3 working 
days

100% 100% 100%

Average number 
per day 22.24 15.63 22.91

5.3 During the period from 1.November 2017 to 31.January 2018 the calls 
received by the Helpdesk were monitored to highlight any 
developments needed to the Fund’s website or communication 
material. It has been established that the most common calls were as 
follows:

1. Personal details changes
2. Assistance with Member Self Service (MSS)
3. Request for benefits quotes
4. Opt out query
5. Pensions payroll query

Officers are now reviewing the information provided to members (e.g 
via the Fund website) to determine whether it can be updated to help 
members find the information they require in a more efficient way.  

 



Pensions Committee; 16 March 2018: Pensions Administration Monitoring Report
            
6. Communications and Governance

6.1 As reported to Committee in November 2017 the Fund is working to 
increase the take up of its online area; Member Self Service (MSS). To 
meet this aim all employers in the Fund have been offered pension 
surgeries on site for their employees. From October 2017 to January 
2017 a total of 6 employers’ organised surgeries for their members with 
Pension Team staff and 138 members received a 1-2-1 appointment 
during this period. 

6.2 Work is underway to issue this year’s Annual Benefit Statements to 
active and deferred members by the regulatory deadline of the 31 
August. Statements are issued through the online area ‘Member Self 
Service’ saving costs on printing and postage unless a request has 
been made in writing for a paper copy. 

6.3 On 21st February 2018 in a written statement by the Chief Secretary to 
the Treasury to the House of Commons, it was confirmed that:

• Public Service pensions will be increased from 9 April 2018 by 
3%, in line with the annual increase in CPI up to September 
2017, except for those public service pensions that have been in 
payment for less than a year, which will receive a pro-rata 
increase.

• CARE Benefit accrual in the LGPS, will also increase in line with 
the annual increase in CPI up to September 2017, 3%. 

6.4 Work is underway to communicate the 2018 Pensions Increase (PI) to 
pensioner members. This will be a combined P60, Payslip and PI 
notification. Deferred and active members will be informed of the 
increase to their accrued benefits via their Annual Benefit Statements.

6.5 It was reported to Committee in November 2017 that the full analysis 
from the Scheme Advisory Boards survey would be shared.  There has 
been a delay and the results are now expected to be shared with 
Funds in the summer.

7.  Data Improvement Plan 

      7.1 As reported to committee in September 2017 the Fund has undertaken 
a Data Quality Review. The high level summary of the results were 
provided in September. The review looked at not only the presence of 
data but also the accuracy of the data held in the Pensions 
Administration System. Two main definitions were used in the review; 
‘Common data’ and what was referred to at the time as ‘Conditional 
Data’ – these are definitions set by The Pensions Regulator (TPR). 
‘Conditional Data’ has since being renamed ‘Scheme Specific’ data by 
the TPR to remove the misconception that they are optional.  



Pensions Committee; 16 March 2018: Pensions Administration Monitoring Report

7.2 TPR has re-confirmed that it intends to increase its focus on record 
keeping and that data quality remains a high priority. In November 
2017 two guides were issued to help Schemes measure and improve 
the data it holds. These documents can be found at Appendix B and 
Appendix C. 

7.3 As part of this focus, TPR has mandated that all Pension Schemes will, 
for the first time, have to report data accuracy scores in the 2018 
scheme return. They will be asking Schemes when they last reviewed 
common and scheme-specific data and how much of this data is 
complete and accurate.  This will need to be provided as a percentage 
score of members with all data items present and accurate. It is 
understood TPR are asking for this information so they can measure 
the quality of record-keeping in the pensions industry, track the 
progress of individual schemes and target individual Schemes who are 
failing to meet the requirements. 

7.4  When the Fund undertook its review the checks on the scheme specific 
data were agreed taking into consideration guidance from the TPR on 
‘conditional data’. However, now the regulator has changed this to 
‘scheme specific data’ guidance from the Scheme Advisory Board 
(SAB) is now expected on what data items are scheme specific for the 
LGPS and the tests the Fund has already performed will be reviewed 
once the guidance is released by the SAB.

7.5 The common data was measured on a data cut taken as at 15th June 
2017. The score was 92.7% of the data was accurate. The scheme 
specific data (conditional at that date) was measured on a data cut as 
at 17th July 2017 and the score was 80.9%. TPR expects that Funds 
with scores under 100% draw up a data improvement plan. Therefore, 
a plan is being created to demonstrate the steps the Fund is taking to 
improve data. 

7.6 Work is already underway tackling the high priority data fails which 
were highlighted as part of the review.  This is being undertaken in-
house with officers correcting the records held on the Pensions 
Administration System. 

8.  Address Checking

8.1 At November 2017 Committee it was reported that an external 
contractor had been identified to trace missing addresses for some 
scheme members.  Unfortunately, this has been unable to proceed 
further due to an issue with the contract.  This is due to the insurance 
of the liability of data not being compliant with the new GDPR rules, 
coming into force in May 2018.  Further work will now be undertaken to 
secure a contract with possibly an alternative contractor that does 
comply with GDPR.



Pensions Committee; 16 March 2018: Pensions Administration Monitoring Report
9. GMP Reconciliation
   
   9.1 Further to the report brought to the September 2017 Committee the 3rd 

stage GMP rectification exercise for Pensioners and the reconciliation 
exercise for Active members has now started.

  
   9.2 As previously reported rectification of Pensioners pension payments 

will follow guidance from the LGA.  This includes non-collection of any 
overpayment due to the fact that the pensioner is unlikely to have 
known the payment was wrong because of the complex nature of 
pension increases due to the Guaranteed Minimum Pension 
complexities. See Appendix D; LGPS Administration Authority 
information note contracted out reconciliation: pensioner 
overpayments. June 2017.

10. Benchmarking

10.1 The Pensions Administration Benchmarking Club has been in 
operation for some time and compares the cost of Pensions 
Administration with other Pension Funds nationally.

10.2 The following bar chart shows the net cost per member and Shropshire 
is just above the group average of £20.14 at £20.32. The second chart 
shows Shropshire’s position against the average cost since 2012. 
(Benchmarking was not undertaken in 2013/14).  You will see that the 
cost per member has slightly increased compared to 2016 but is still 
lower than in 2015.  The team has had an increase in resources over 
the past few year due to the new scheme in 2014 and the increased 
importance and regulation on good data quality and governance. 
Because of this investment the Fund has been able to meet the revised 
annual deadline of 31 August, introduced in 2014, for the production of 
Annual Benefit Statements. The introduction of the use of the iConnect 
service to receive data from all employers on a monthly basis has also 
helped this deadline to be met as well as putting the Fund in a good 
position to undertake a review of its data quality. Some of the other 
Funds compared to on this chart are not always able to meet deadlines 
and have not yet undertaken a review of data.  Not all Funds are doing 
monthly postings of data yet and have to rely on year-end returns. A 
review is still to be undertaken of the procedural turnaround times used 
to measure against Disclosure Regulations through our workflow 
processes to ensure reporting of KPI’s is robust.



Pensions Committee; 16 March 2018: Pensions Administration Monitoring Report
10.3 The following charts show the composition of members as at 31 March 

2017. It shows that the Fund has above average proportion of actives 
at 34.7%, the average is 34%.  Interestingly of these actives, a big 
proportion, 25.6%, are part-time, this is quite a bit above the group 
average of 19.6%.  9.1% being Full-time which is the lowest of the 
group.  Administratively, active member and particularly part-time 
scheme employees are more time consuming than the other 
membership groups. Part-time members are particularly more labour 
intensive largely due to the bulk of these being school based staff and 
the nature of these posts mean that there are a lot of changes and 
transfer to new posts.    

These next charts show that the Fund has an above average number of Deferred 
Pensioners but below average number of pensioners.

It is also interesting to note, shown in the following charts that the number of years of 
experience of the staff at Shropshire is above average within the LGPS.   43% have 



Pensions Committee; 16 March 2018: Pensions Administration Monitoring Report
more than 15 years’ experience, compared to the group average of 32%.  This 
contributes to good staff retention:

 

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information)

Pensions Committee Meeting 22 September 2017 & 24 November 2017 Pensions 
Administration Report 

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder)
NA

Local Member
NA

Appendices
Appendix A – Performance Chart
Appendix B – The Pensions Regulator – A quick guide to measuring your data
Appendix C – The Pensions Regulator – A quick guide to improving your data
Appendix D – LGPS Administration Authority information note contracted out 

reconciliation: pensioner overpayments. June 2017.



Appendix A

A
pr-15

Jun-15

A
ug-15

O
ct-15

D
ec-15

Feb-16

A
pr-16

Jun-16

A
ug-16

O
ct-16

D
ec-16

Feb-17

A
pr-17

Jun-17

A
ug-17

O
ct-17

D
ec-17

Feb-18

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

Tasks Which Became Due

Procedures Outstanding at end of Month

Outstanding Excluding Checking

Number of Procedures Processed 0n 
Time

Procedures Completed

Procedures Processed On Time In Office 
P384

Total Processed In Office P384

Terminated Procedures P383

Task Statistics

Month

N
um

be
r o

f T
as

ks





A quick guide to

measuring your data

Information 
for trustees 
and scheme 
managers

This outlines: 

 � the data you need to measure in your scheme

 � how to do it

 � how to calculate your common and key scheme-specific (conditional)  data scores.

It should be read alongside our quick guide to record-keeping at: www.tpr.gov.uk/record-keeping-guide

Trustees or scheme managers are accountable for the record-keeping of a scheme, even though 
administrators may look after the records on a day-to-day basis.

What data should I measure?
There are two types of data you should measure: common data and key scheme-specific 
(conditional) data. Both are equally important.

Common data

Common data are basic data items which are used to identify scheme members. All schemes 
should hold these for all members.

 � National insurance number

 � Surname

 � Sex

 � Expected retirement/maturity date 
(target retirement age)

 � Last status event – the date at which 
the membership status last changed 
eg from active to deferred. Where 
appropriate, you should also capture 
the reason for the change in status 
(eg retired or opted out) 

 � Postcode

 � Date of birth

 � First name or initials

 � Date pensionable service started, 
membership/policy start date or first 
contribution date

 � Membership status eg active, 
deferred, pensioner. This can be 
mixed where part (but not all) of the 
benefits are being taken.

 � Address

Appendix B

http://www.tpr.gov.uk/record-keeping-guide


A quick guide on how to measure your data 2

There are some limited exceptions. For example, in some cases you might not need to maintain 
address details for active members if scheme communications are handled by the employer. You 
also don’t need to measure data for members who are no longer entitled to any benefits under the 
scheme (for example they have transferred out to another scheme). 

Scheme-specific (conditional) data

You will hold other data in respect of members and their participation in the scheme. Rather 
than measuring all this data, you should focus on data which is key to running your scheme and 
meeting your legal obligations. This will vary from scheme to scheme and will depend on many 
factors including scheme type, structure and the administration system used. It is also referred to 
as ‘conditional’ data. You should work with your administrator to identify your key scheme-specific 
data but, depending on whether you have a defined benefit, defined contribution or public service 
scheme, this may include:

 � employment records such as employer name, salary records, service history 

 � employee and employer contribution history

 � information on the value of the member’s pension, such as the last estimated value, the date 
of the estimate and how the pension benefit was calculated

 � any benefit specifics like GMP entitlement, HMRC protections or cash entitlements

 � investment decisions, units purchased, sold and held 

 � specific data items set out in legislation such as the transaction records set out for public 
service pension schemes.

Additional detailed examples of scheme-specific data can be found in our record-keeping guidance. 

Example: How to define scheme-specific data

The trustees of the ABC defined benefit scheme want to assess the quality of their data. 
They understand which common data needs to be measured but invite the scheme 
administrator to their next trustee board meeting, and ask them to bring a proposal on 
what constitutes their scheme-specific data. 

The administrator provides a list of what they consider to be relevant data items for this 
scheme, and why these are key to how the scheme runs. The administrator also explains why 
some data is not considered key. For example, in this scheme benefits are calculated based 
on the highest salary earned within the last five years (or the five years prior to leaving) so 
salary information before this period is not essential for the running of the scheme.

The trustees and administrator discuss the proposal at the board meeting, and the trustees 
commission the administrator to provide a measure of the data. The trustees also ask the 
administrator to break down which data items have gaps and assess the impact of any gaps 
on the scheme, so they can prioritise any remedial action.



How do I measure my data?
When you measure your data, you should look 
at whether your data is present, and whether 
it is accurate. You should be confident that 
your administrator has put sufficient processes 
and controls in place to ensure the quality of 
new and historical data. You should talk to 
your administrator to understand their quality 
controls, but this might include the following:

 � Checking you have data in all the fields 
you expect.

 � Consistency checks – data items must be 
consistent with each other, for example 
the date a member joined the scheme 
must be later than their date of birth, and 
prior to their expected retirement date.

 � Validation checks – data items should 
be in a valid format, for example the two 
letter prefix of the national insurance 
number needs to match the two letter 
prefixes used by HMRC

 � Specific processes, for example 
regular existence checks, or checking 
members’ dates of birth, eg against birth 
certificates, at the point benefits are 
taken. 

Your administrator should regularly report to 
you on the outcome of their quality controls. 
If any key data item is identified as absent or 
likely to be incorrect, it should be verified with 
the relevant member or employer.

How do I calculate my data score? 
Your data score is the percentage of members 
in the scheme that you assess to have fully 
present and accurate common or scheme-
specific data.  

Case example: How to calculate a 
data score

A scheme has 100 members. It has 11 
common data items per member, so 
a total of 1,100 common data items 
held. A data review shows 40 addresses 
as missing, but the rest of the data is 
assessed as present and accurate. 

The common data score for this 
scheme is therefore 60%, as the 
administrator has assessed that 60% 
of members have fully present and 
accurate common data. 

What next?
Where you identify issues, you should put  
an improvement plan in place to resolve 
them. You can find out more in our quick 
guide to improving your data at www.tpr.gov.
uk/data-guide.

© The Pensions Regulator November 2017

You can reproduce the text in this publication as long as you quote 
The Pensions Regulator’s name and title of the publication. Please 
contact us if you have any questions about this publication. This 
document aims to be fully compliant with WCAG 2.0 accessibility 
standards and we can produce it in Braille, large print or in audio 
format. We can also produce it in other languages.

http://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/docs/improve-data-guide.pdf
http://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/docs/improve-data-guide.pdf
http://www.tpr.gov.uk/data-guide
http://www.tpr.gov.uk/data-guide




A quick guide to

improving your data

Information 
for trustees 
and scheme 
managers

September 2017

About this guide
Trustees and scheme managers should review their data at least once a year 
and if there are any issues, put an improvement plan in place to address 
them. This guide will help you design an improvement plan, or assess the one 
you currently have in place. It is applicable whether your pension scheme is 
administered in-house or by a third party provider.

The improvement plan should clearly set out the steps you are taking to improve your scheme 
data. Your plan will be unique to your scheme’s circumstances. Your plan does not need to be 
complicated – the amount of detail you need to go into will depend on the complexity of the 
issues you are trying to address. However there are certain elements we expect to see in any 
robust improvement plan, based on our experience of good practice. 

We expect all trustees and scheme managers to maintain accurate records. Failure to do so can 
put you at risk of failing to meet your legal obligations and we may take enforcement action where 
schemes are not meeting the standards we expect and are failing to demonstrate they are taking 
appropriate steps to improve their records.  

What are your improvement plan’s objectives?
In your plan, you should clearly set out the objectives you are trying to achieve by improving your 
data. If you have multiple objectives you should set them out in order of priority.

Example objectives

 � Addressing data issues which impact your ability to run your scheme effectively, including 
paying out benefits correctly, processing core transactions, ensuring a high standard of 
service for members, keeping costs manageable or meeting various legal obligations. 
These issues might typically be identified through your annual data review, an audit or 
the valuation process 

 � Improving members’ experiences, for example providing members with online access to 
their records

continued...

Appendix C



A quick guide to improving your data 2

Outcomes
You should set out the outcomes that will be achieved, based on your objectives, including how 
they will be measured and how long it will take to achieve them.

Examples may include:

 � Improved member service, for example fewer member complaints, and reduced 
processing times for events such as transfers

 � More member communications issued accurately and on time

 � Fewer assumptions in valuation data

 � Improved administrator performance, for example an improvement in the time it takes 
to complete certain tasks

 � Reduced administration costs

 � Completion of administrative tasks, for example clearing any backlogs

 � Updated and documented procedures which reduce the risks of errors recurring

 � Improvement in data scores, which you should retest once you’ve cleaned the data to 
demonstrate progress

Scope and prioritising
You should clearly set out the scope of your improvement work, in particular:

 � which data is included or not

 � membership types included

 � how far back your improvement work will go

You may need to take a phased approach if there is a lot of work required or it is particularly 
complex, or in light of your budget,  prioritising the work in light of the objectives you’re trying to 
achieve or the risks you’re trying to mitigate. 

 � Increasing automation or administrator efficiency, for example reducing service times 
as information is more readily at hand

 � Preparing for the transition to a new administration system or a new administrator

 � Improving employer confidence in the assessment of liabilities and the 
appropriateness of their contributions and recovery plans 

 � Improving data ahead of a de-risking exercise or a liability management exercise



A quick guide to improving your data 3

Data type

Personal information, which will improve your ability to 
communicate with members

Specific data item which is a frequent cause of complaints

Member type or profile
Pensions in payment first

How close members are to retirement

Data source Largest employer first (in a multi-employer scheme)

Scheme event
The data you need for certain scheme events such as issuing 
benefit statements or valuations

Return on investment Issues which have the greatest impact on running costs

Technical solution Bulk automated resolution

Quick wins Known data issues which are relatively easy to rectify

Breakdown of activities
You should break down the activities your administrator will undertake for you as part of the 
improvement plan. For each activity, you should set out:

 � the issue to be addressed

 � the methodology to be used, for example member address tracing, pensioner existence 
checks, research of company employment records

 � resource allocation – who, how many working hours / days will it take

 � any assumptions made, for example the number of records likely to need work, which 
members are covered and how any identified errors will be rectified

 � timescales and target dates

 � how you will know the task has been achieved (success criteria)

As a general rule you should prioritise data which will have the greatest impact on member 
benefits – some other examples are outlined in the table below.



A quick guide to improving your data 4

Remember: Improvement work doesn’t end when the data is clean

You need to ensure the data is fed back into your systems, and you should include follow-up 
activity in your plan, for example: 

 � updating payroll systems and member records

 � communicating with members 

 � rectification work, for example if you identify overpayments or underpayments 

 � capturing and documenting changes to data and processes so future administration 
teams know what has been done

 � embedding new processes and working methods to ensure improvements are 
maintained

Dependencies
You should identify any other work which might impact on your improvement work, particularly 
where data is changed or the same resources need to be used. This will help you identify potential 
sources of conflict, or opportunities to minimise burden, for example by reducing the number of 
times you ask employers for data, or by only writing to members once. 

Examples of other work that you may need to factor in could include valuations, member 
communication exercises, GMP reconciliation, year-end reconciliation, negotiating an 
administration contract, proposed de-risking exercises, or proposed scheme structure changes.

Timeframes and timelines
Your improvement plan must have a defined end date within a reasonable timeframe. More 
complex work can take a number of months so you should consider breaking it down into phases.

Mapping work into a timeline helps with planning, in particular by identifying hard deadlines, and 
where additional resource may be required. Your timeline should clearly set out key milestones, 
reporting and decision points. It should also reflect the dependencies you have identified. 

Resourcing
Plans should take account of available staff and financial resources. You should agree at the start 
whether the work will be delivered as part of ongoing ‘business as usual’ administration or as a 
separately managed project, with additional budget and resource. If you are diverting resource 
from other work, you should set out what impact this will have for the scheme. 



A quick guide to improving your data 5

As well as the administrators’ resource, you should consider other parties you may need to obtain 
data from, for example employers (providing member information, employment and contribution 
history), HM Revenue and Customs (National Insurance numbers), members (dates of birth, email 
addresses), tracing companies (address checks, existence checks), and advisers such as actuaries  
or lawyers. 

Governance and reporting
Trustees and scheme managers are ultimately accountable for scheme record-keeping, and they 
need to have appropriate oversight of progress and the quality of the work delivered. They also 
need to be available to answer any queries the administrator has as the work progresses. 

You should agree roles and responsibilities at the outset, in particular those of the trustees or 
scheme manager and administrators. Your plan should set out who will make decisions, for 
example signing off on success criteria, or signing off on changes to the work (to the timeline, to 
resources and to budget). You should set out any discretions the administrator has.

You should also set out how, to whom and when the administrator will report on progress. This 
should include reporting to trustees or the scheme manager but also other relevant parties, for 
example pension boards, employers or members. 

Depending on the complexity of work you may wish to have a range of other formal controls in 
place, for example a decisions/action log or a change control log. 

Ongoing data improvement
Data improvement is a continuous process not a one-off exercise. Your engagement with data 
does not end when the improvement plan is delivered. You should regularly check the data you 
need to run an efficient and effective scheme, and make sure data is managed well on a day to day 
basis. You can find out more in our record-keeping quick guide.



Flowchart: designing your improvement plan

Activity Who does this?

Set objectives you want to achieve
Trustees or scheme managers  
(supported by pension boards)

Define outcomes and scope of plan

Typically administrators

Typically administrators, working 
with trustees or scheme managers 

(supported by pension boards)
Define activities, dependencies, timeline, 

resources and governance

Deliver Report

 
 
© The Pensions Regulator September 2017

You can reproduce the text in this publication as long as you quote 
The Pensions Regulator’s name and title of the publication. Please 
contact us if you have any questions about this publication. This 
document aims to be fully compliant with WCAG 2.0 accessibility 
standards and we can produce it in Braille, large print or in audio 
format. We can also produce it in other languages.

Where can I find out more?

Record-keeping quick guide at www.tpr.gov.uk/record-keeping-guide

DB and DC schemes 

Record-keeping guidance at www.tpr.gov.uk/guidance-record-keeping 
DC code of practice at www.tpr.gov.uk/code13  
DC guide to administration at www.tpr.gov.uk/admin 

Public service schemes

Public service code of practice at www.tpr.gov.uk/code14 



Version 1.0 – June 2017 – England & Wales 

1 

LGPS Administering Authority Information Note 

Contracted-out reconciliation: pensioner 
overpayments 

Aim of this information note  
This Note has been prepared by the LGPC Secretariat, a part of the Local 
Government Association (LGA). Its aim is to assist administering authorities in 
determining what action to take following the discovery of an over-payment of 
pension during the course of the contracted-out reconciliation exercise. 

Important please note disclaimer below 
This document represents the views of the Secretariat and should not be 
treated as legal advice nor in any way a complete and authoritative statement 
of the law. Readers cannot place any legal reliance on the content and may 
wish, or will need, to take their own legal advice on the interpretation of any 
particular piece of legislation. No responsibility whatsoever will be assumed 
by the LGPC Secretariat or the LGA for any direct or consequential loss, 
financial or otherwise, damage or inconvenience, or any other obligation or 
liability incurred by readers relying on information contained in this Note. 

Background 

Current position 

Considerations for administering authorities 
 Is the size of the overpayment relevant?

 Can ‘Estoppel’ be used to prevent the recovery of an
overpayment?

 Can ‘change of position’ be used to make a partial claim for
recovery of an overpayment? 

 Is ‘relevance of member awareness’ important?

 Should the ‘cost effectiveness’ of recovery be considered?

 Should any resultant ‘hardship’ be considered when
deciding whether or not to seek recovery?

Limitation Act 1980 

 How does the Limitation Act 1980 affect what monies may
be recovered?

Tax 
 Where a pension is overpaid, from what date should the

pension be reduced?

 Would sums written off be unauthorised payments?

Appendix D



 

Version 1.0 – June 2017 – England & Wales 

2 
 

Background 
In February 2016 HM Treasury (HMT) wrote to DCLG regarding the data 
reconciliation exercise which all Public Service Pension Schemes (PSPSs) 
are undertaking as a consequence of the end of contracting-out on 5 April 
2016.  
 
The letter: - 

 explained that a small working group had been established by HMT to 
arrive at a number of collective decisions on which data should be 
reconciled and on what options are available to PSPSs to help simplify 
the reconciliation exercise, and 

 stated that PSPSs have expressed a preference for consistency in 
treatment, where feasible, and  

 recommended that the reconciliation criteria set out within the letter 
should be adopted. 

 
In relation to overpayments of pension identified as a result of the contracted-
out reconciliation exercise the letter stated “For pensioners who have been 
historically overpaid, the working group recommends that you wait for 
evidence from the reconciliation exercise on the extent of overpayments. This 
would give more information on whether there will be value for money in 
recouping the overpayments”.     
 

Current position (June 2017) 
Since that letter was issued to administering authorities, the Secretariat has 
received a number of queries from administering authorities querying when 
they can expect to receive recommendations from HMT concerning the 
reduction of pensions in payment and recovery of any overpayments.  
 
HMT have yet to make any recommendation regarding either the date by 
which any affected pensions should be reduced or as to whether or not any 
overpayments should be recovered. This is because HMT require ‘evidence’ 
of the extent of overpayments before they are able to make any 
recommendation to Ministers.  
 
The current position places administering authorities in a difficult positon for 
the following reasons:- 
 administering authorities are obliged to correct any error they discover 

within a reasonable period of time. To do otherwise would render the 
continuing overpayments unauthorised under regulation 14 of the 
Registered Pension Scheme (Authorised Payments) Regulations 2009 
[SI 2009/1171]. Furthermore any delay in reducing the pension to the 
correct level would increase the loss to the fund in the event 
overpayments are not recovered.   

 administering authorities will have their own delegations with regard to 
the process and limitations of write off which will apply for overpayments 
and which they will have to follow. 

 
 



 

Version 1.0 – June 2017 – England & Wales 

3 
 

Considerations for administering authorities 
The complexity surrounding Pension Increase and Guaranteed Minimum 
Pensions could be significant in determining an administering authority’s 
approach. It is, in the view of the Secretariat, unlikely that Scheme members 
could have been aware that they were being overpaid, unless they have a 
good understanding of the interaction between the Pensions (Increase) Act 
1971, the Social Security Pensions Act 1975 and the Pension Schemes Act 
19931. Therefore, administering authorities may wish to take into account the 
areas mentioned below, alongside their existing delegations, when making 
any decision to recover overpayments.  
 

Is the size of the overpayment relevant? 
In its determination in the case of Capita ATL Pension Trustees Ltd v 
Gellately [2011] EWHC 485 (Ch) the High Court found that "In view of the 
small scale of the problem, the distress that any attempt to recover the sums 
would inevitably cause, and the likelihood that the exercise would anyway not 
be cost-effective" it was not necessary for the Trustees to take any steps to 
recoup the overpayments." In this case, the amount of the overpayments to 
three widows were relatively small (no more than £10,200 in total). 
 

Can ‘Estoppel’ be used to prevent the recovery of an 
overpayment?  
The starting point used to be that if an overpayment had been made under a 
mistake of law it was generally not recoverable but if the employer could 
establish that the mistake, was a mistake of fact, the money was potentially 
recoverable. The Law Commissions in England, Wales and Scotland 
recommended that the distinction between mistakes of law and mistakes of 
fact should be removed. The House of Lords has already decided cases on 
this basis (see Kleinwort Benson v Lincoln City Council and others 1998 4 All 
ER 513). So, whether an overpayment results from a mistake of fact or law, it 
would seem that, potentially, it could now be recoverable unless estoppel 
applies (although, in the absence of an employee’s consent to repayment, 
legal advice should be sought before instigating any formal recovery action). 
 

The recipient may lodge the defence of estoppel by representation if they can 
show that: 

 the administering authority made a representation of fact that led the 
recipient to believe that they were entitled to treat the money as their 
own; 

 the recipient has changed their position, in good faith, in reliance of that 
representation; and 

 the overpayment was not caused by the fault of the recipient. 
 

The recipient may lodge the defence of Estoppel by convention if they can 
show that: 

                                                 
1 Or unless an error had been made that should have been obvious to the member e.g. the member’s pension on 
attaining GMP age was £300 p.m. of which £40 p.m. was GMP. The member had been notified that the pension at 
GMP age (£300) would be made up of £40 GMP and £260 pension. However, payroll had inadvertently input a GMP 
figure of £400, with the pensioner then receiving a total of £660 pm instead of £300 pm. 



 

Version 1.0 – June 2017 – England & Wales 

4 
 

 even if the administering authority had not made a representation of fact 
that led the recipient to believe that they were entitled to treat the money 
as their own,  the administering authority and the recipient had acted on 
an assumed state of facts or law, the assumption being shared by both 
parties or assumed by one and acquiesced to by the other (as 
demonstrated in subsequent mutual dealings between both parties) 

 

However, estoppel is an inflexible, all or nothing defence. A successful plea of 
estoppel acts as a total bar to recovery. This can lead to unjust enrichment so 
that the recipient can keep all of the money even if it exceeds the detriment 
they suffered. In recognition of this, the courts have developed the more 
flexible ‘change of position’ defence (see below).  
 

Can ‘change of position’ be used to make a partial claim for 
recovery of an overpayment? 
The change of position defence means that it is no longer necessary to show 
that there had been a representation made by one party on which the other 
had placed reliance and had acted to his detriment. More importantly, it only 
prevents recovery of that part of the overpayment in respect of which the 
recipient has changed his position and the requirement for them to repay the 
sum would outweigh the injustice of denying the paying employer restitution - 
see Lipkin Gorman v Karpnale Ltd [1991] 2 AC 548.  

 
Even if the recipient had spent some of the money, this would not necessarily 
prevent recovery if they would have incurred such expenditure anyway. This 
concept was followed in Derby v Scottish Equitable [Court of Appeal, Civil 
Division, 16 March 2001] which limited the use of the defence of estoppel to 
the amount used in changing the recipient's position. In this case, Mr. Derby 
was only able to retain the sum he spent on improving his lifestyle (£9,661) 
and not the full sum of the overpayment (£172,000).  
 

Is ‘relevance of member awareness’ important? 
In the determination in the case of Professor B Kenny and Teachers Pensions 
Scheme [determination 28034/5] the Pensions Ombudsman placed a further 
limit on the change of position test. Professor Kenny had been quoted a 
pension of £13,000 a year but was paid £21,000 a year. The Pensions 
Ombudsman found that "one of the essential elements of a defence of change 
of position is that the individual must have changed his position in good faith. 
In other words, Professor Kenny could not rely on such a defence if he was 
either aware of the error, or should have been........  I am happy to accept that 
Professor Kenny was not 'a pension’s expert'. Nevertheless, the discrepancy 
is so great that I find that Professor Kenny should have been aware that 
something was amiss. I find, therefore, that the defence of change of position 
cannot succeed in Professor Kenny's case.” This line was upheld in the High 
Court in Webber v DfE (Chancery Division, 19th December 2014). 

 
Should the ‘cost effectiveness’ of recovery be considered?  
Although paragraph 7.10 of the HM Treasury document “Managing Public 
Money” (July 2013 as revised in August 2015) suggests that the document 
does not directly apply to local government, that is not to say that the 



 

Version 1.0 – June 2017 – England & Wales 

5 
 

principles within the document are not appropriate in considering the cost 
effectiveness of reclaiming any overpaid monies. The document states that: 
“public sector organisations should take decisions about their tactics in 
seeking recovery in particular cases on the strength of cost benefit analysis of 
the options”. 
 

Should any resultant ‘hardship’ be considered when deciding 
whether or not to seek recovery? 
Although paragraph 7.10 of the HM Treasury document “Managing Public 
Money” (July 2013 as revised in August 2015) suggests that this does not 
directly apply to local government, that is not to say that the principles within 
are not appropriate in considering any resultant hardship, when seeking to 
reclaim overpaid monies. The document states that: “Public sector 
organisations may waive recovery of overpayments where it is demonstrated 
that recovery would cause hardship. But hardship should not be confused with 
inconvenience. Where the recipient has no entitlement, repayment does not in 
itself amount to hardship, especially if the overpayment was discovered 
quickly. Acceptable pleas of hardship should be supported by reasonable 
evidence that the recovery action proposed by the paying organisation would 
be detrimental to the welfare of the debtor or the debtor's family. Hardship is 
not necessarily limited to financial hardship; public sector organisations may 
waive recovery of overpayments where recovery would be detrimental to the 
mental welfare of the debtor or the debtor's family. Again, such hardship must 
be demonstrated by evidence”. 

 

Limitation Act 1980 
  
How does the Limitation Act 1980 affect what monies may be 
recovered?  
 
Section 5 of the Limitation Act 1980 states that “An action founded on simple 
contract shall not be brought after the expiration of six years from the date on 
which the cause of action accrued”. However, section 32(1) of the Limitation 
Act 1980 ‘postpones’ the date by which an administering authority may make 
a claim to recover monies. It states “the period of limitation shall not begin to 
run until the plaintiff has discovered the fraud, concealment or mistake (as the 
case may be) or could with reasonable diligence have discovered it”. 
 
The combination of sections 5 and 32(1) of the Limitation Act 1980 mean that 
a claim to recover overpayments caused by a mistake (or by fraud or act of 
deliberate concealment committed by the defendant) has to be made within 
6 years of the date when the mistake, fraud or act of concealment was first 
discovered or could, with reasonable diligence, have first been discovered. 
Where a claim is made within the 6 year period, all of the overpayment can be 
recovered.  
 
If the claim for recovery is made more than 6 years after the date when the 
overpayment(s) could with reasonable diligence first have been discovered 
then, as each monthly overpayment payment is treated as a separate 



 

Version 1.0 – June 2017 – England & Wales 

6 
 

overpayment, only overpayments made within the 6 years prior to the “cut-off 
date” are recoverable. The question of what constitutes the “cut-off date” was 
considered in the High Court case of Webber v DfE (Chancery Division, 8th 
July 2016). 
 
The result of the above is shown in the following examples (please note that 
the examples within the table below assume that an overpayment claim is a 
quasi-contractual one and that a restitutionary claim is not possible) 
 

Scenario Limitation Period Overpayment Period 
Which Can Be 

Claimed2 

 Overpayments began in 
April 2008 (the first 
Mistake Date) 

 Overpayments 
discovered, or could 
have been discovered 
with reasonable due 
diligence, in August 
2010 (the Discovery 
Date under Section 32 
of the Limitation Act 
1980) 

 Overpayments made for 
period between April 
2008 and August 2010 

 Formal claim3 for 
recovery made in 
January 2015 (the Cut 
Off Date as referred to 
in Webber) 

 No issues in principle 
with the Limitation 
Period as formal claim 
for recovery commenced 
within 6 period after the 
Discovery Date 

 claims are therefore 
valid and should 
proceed 

 Overpayments back to 
when they began in 
April 2008 until August 
2010 may be claimed 

   

 Overpayments began in 
April 2003 (the first 
Mistake Date) 

 Overpayments 
discovered, or could 
have been discovered 
with reasonable due 
diligence, in November 
2009 (the Discovery 
Date under Section 32 
of the Limitation Act 
1980) 

 No issues in principle 
with the Limitation 
Period as formal claim 
for recovery 
commenced within 6 
year period after the 
Discovery Date 

 claims are therefore 
valid and should 
proceed 

 Overpayments back to 
when they began in April 
2003 until November 
2009 may be claimed  

                                                 
2 While this refers to the period which can be claimed, this is not the same as the period which will definitely be 
recovered in light of the other defences which are available to scheme members who face such claims for repayment 
of Overpayments. 
3 Reference to the ‘formal claim’ in this appendix means the commencement of formal proceedings to recover the 
Overpayment. 



 

Version 1.0 – June 2017 – England & Wales 

7 
 

 Overpayments made 
from April 2003 to 
November 2009  

 Formal claim for 
recovery made in 
December 2011 (the 
Cut Off Date as referred 
to in Webber) 

   

 Overpayments began in 
January 1999 (the first 
Mistake Date) 

 Overpayments 
discovered or could 
have been discovered 
with reasonable due 
diligence in September 
2016 (when the date 
was received from HM 
Treasury in relation to 
the GMP equalisation 
exercise) (the Discovery 
Date under Section 32 
of the Limitation Act 
1980) 

 Overpayments made for 
the period from January 
1999 to September 
2016 

 Formal claim for 
recovery made in 
February 2017 (the Cut 
Off Date as referred to 
in Webber) 

 No issues in principle 
with the Limitation 
Period as formal claim 
for recovery 
commenced within 6 
year period after the 
Discovery Date 

 claims are therefore 
valid and should 
proceed 

 Overpayments back to 
when they began in 
January 1999 until 
September 2016 may 
be claimed 

   

 Overpayments began in 
April 2006 (the first 
Mistake Date) 

 Overpayments 
discovered, or could 
have been discovered 
with reasonable due 
diligence, in August 
2009 (the Discovery 
Date under Section 32 
of the Limitation Act 
1980) 

 Overpayments made for 
period between April 
2006 and August 2009 

 Formal claim for 
recovery made in 

 Issue with the 
Limitation Period as 
formal claim for 
recovery commenced 
more than 6 years after 
the Discovery Date  

 claims are therefore out 
of time and should not 
proceed  

 Overpayments cannot 
be claimed back as the 
formal claim for 
recovery was made 
more than 6 years after 
the Discovery Date   



 

Version 1.0 – June 2017 – England & Wales 

8 
 

January 2017 (the Cut 
Off Date as referred to 
in Webber) 

   

 Overpayments began in 
April 2006 (the first 
Mistake Date) 

 Overpayments 
discovered, or could 
have been discovered 
with reasonable due 
diligence, in August 
2009 (the Discovery 
Date under Section 32 
of the Limitation Act 
1980) 

 Overpayments made for 
period between April 
2006 and August 2016 

 Formal claim for 
recovery made in 
January 2017 (the Cut 
Off Date as referred to 
in Webber) 

 Issue with the 
Limitation Period as 
formal claim for 
recovery commenced 
more than 6 years after 
the Discovery Date  

 claims for 
overpayments between 
April 2006 and January 
2011 are therefore out 
of time and should not 
proceed  

 however, as each 
monthly overpayment 
is a separate 
overpayment, the effect 
of the Webber case is 
that overpayments 
made in the 6 years 
prior to the Cut Off 
Date (i.e. the 
overpayments made in 
February 2011 to 
August 2016) can be 
recovered 

 Overpayments for the 
period April 2006 to 
January 2011 cannot be 
claimed back as the 
formal claim for 
recovery was made 
more than 6 years after 
the Discovery Date   

 Overpayments for the 
period February 2011 to 
August 2016 may be 
reclaimed. 

 

Tax 
 
Where a pension is overpaid, from what date should the pension 
be reduced? 
As mentioned previously administering authorities are obliged to correct any 
error they discover within a reasonable period of time. To do otherwise would 
render payments unauthorised under Section 14 of the Registered Pension 
Scheme (Authorised Payments) Regulations 2009 [SI 2009/1171]. We 
understand that HMRC have provided a clear steer with regards to timing, in 
so much that “When a scheme discovers an overpayment it immediately 
become unauthorised and is subject to an unauthorised tax charge”. 
   
Bearing the above in mind, administering authorities should carefully consider 
the implications for themselves and the scheme member before making any 
decision not to amend pensions to the correct level as soon as they are aware 
of any errors.  

 
Would sums written off be unauthorised payments? 
We understand that any overpayment that is not recovered will not be 
unauthorised if it falls within regulations 13 or 14 of the Registered Pension 
Schemes (Authorised Payments) Regulations 2009 [SI 2009/1171]. 



 

Version 1.0 – June 2017 – England & Wales 

9 
 

Regulation 13 says that a payment made in error will be an authorised 
payment if the: 

 payment was genuinely intended to represent the pension payable to the 
person, 

 administering authority believed the recipient was entitled to the 
payment, and 

 administering authority believed the recipient was entitled to the amount 
of pension that was paid in error. 

 
However, there is a presumption in the regulations that once the error has 
been determined the administering authority must take reasonable steps to 
prevent any further overpayment to the recipient (except, by virtue of 
regulation 14, during any period where the scheme is taking a reasonable 
period of time to determine whether to change the scheme rules and, if so, 
during a reasonable period of time to actually a mend the scheme rules, in 
order that the higher level of pension will be paid as normal authorised 
payments).  
 
In addition to the above, there is a further exemption where the overpayment 
is a ‘genuine error’ as described in PTM146300 and the aggregate 
overpayment (paid after 5th April 2006) is less than £250. In such 
circumstances, if the overpayment is not recovered it remains an 
unauthorised payment but it does not have to be reported to HMRC and 
HMRC will not seek to collect tax charges on it.   





Committee and Date
Pensions Committee

16 March 2018

9.30am

Item

17

Public

EMPLOYER EVENTS POLICY 

Responsible Officer Debbie Sharp
Email: debbie.sharp@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 01743 252192

1. Summary

1.1 This report informs Members of the recently drafted ‘Employer Events 
Policy’ which replaces the Fund’s Termination Funding Policy.

2. Recommendations

2.1 Members are asked to approve the ‘Employer Events Policy’, with or 
without comment. 

  
REPORT

3. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal

3.1 Risk Management 
Performance is considered and monitored to ensure regulatory 
timescales and key performance indicators are adhered to.  
Administration risks are identified and managed and are reported to 
committee on an annual basis.

3.2 Human Rights Act Appraisal
The recommendations contained in this report are compatible with the 
Human Rights Act 1998.

3.3 Environmental Appraisal
There is no direct environmental, equalities or climate change 
consequence of this report.

3.4  Financial Implications
There are no direct financial implications of implementing this 
Policy. Any exit assessment costs referred to in this report relate to the 
payment made by the Scheme employer exiting the Fund.  

mailto:debbie.sharp@shropshire.gov.uk


Pensions Committee; 16 March 2018: Pensions Administration Monitoring Report
4. New Employer Events Policy

4.1 As reported to Committee in November 2017 a new policy has been 
created following advice from the Actuary. The ‘Employer Events 
Policy’ replaces the Termination Funding Policy and aims to be more 
comprehensive covering the typical 'life' events of a scheme employer; 
from joining the Scheme, to winding up. It summarises those ‘life’ 
events, possible outcomes and informs those affected employers of the 
Fund’s policy should any of the scenarios occur. 

4.2 The scope of the new policy covers an employer’s lifetime in the 
LGPS.  It includes updated regulatory references and expands on the 
current Terminations Policy to incorporate joining the Fund, events for 
admission bodies, new academies, mergers and the process of 
the Triennial Actuarial Valuation. Also covered is the actions the Fund 
will take if it becomes aware of a potential exit and how the cost of this 
will be managed. 

4.3 One area of change, within the new policy, is to standardise the 
approach used for exit assessment. This change affects four 
employers in the Fund. The current policy position means if one of the 
four employers were to leave the Fund its exit assessment would be 
carried out using an “ongoing” basis, regardless of whether a guarantee 
is in place or not. This is different to the more prudent approach applied 
for the rest of the employers in cases where there is no guarantor. 
Advice received from the Actuary was to apply a fairer treatment of exit 
assessment across all employers, whilst taking into consideration 
changes to the market yields since 2012 and the updated LGPS 
regulations. Therefore it was deemed appropriate to increase the 
prudential margin in this method of assessment for the four affected 
employers. 

 

4.4 All current employers have been given the opportunity to engage with 
the Fund on the new policy.  All queries raised were dealt with by 
officers. As the change in exit assessment had financial implications 
for four employers those affected were provided with a breakdown of 
the effect on the calculation using both approaches and several 
employers responded with comments.

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information)

Pensions Committee Meeting 24 November 2017 Pensions Administration Report 

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder)
NA

Local Member
NA



Pensions Committee; 16 March 2018: Pensions Administration Monitoring Report

Appendices
Appendix A – Employer Events Policy 





1 

Shropshire County Pension Fund 

Employer Events Policy 

Issue Date: 16/03/2018 

Review Date: 16/03/2019 

Version 1.0 

Appendix A



 

 

2 

 

Contents  

 

1. Introduction  

2. An LGPS employer’s lifetime  

3. Joining the Fund  

4. Triennial Actuarial Valuation  

5. Monitoring and planning for exit  

6. Exit from the Fund  

7. Employer costs and charges  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

3 

 

1. Introduction 

This Employer Events Framework policy document has been prepared 

by Shropshire Council acting in its capacity of Administering Authority of 

the Shropshire County Pension Fund (“the Fund”).   All terms and 

definitions are as set out in the Local Government Pension Scheme 

Regulations 2013  (as amended) (“the 2013 Regulations”) and the Local 

Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings and 

Amendment) Regulations 2014 (“the 2014 Transitional Regulations”) 

(collectively; “the Regulations”). 

The purpose of this document is to describe the various “life stages” of 

an employer that participates in the Fund.   It summarises the events 

and possible outcomes from those events right through until it withdraws 

from the Fund.   Whilst the Administering Authority reserves the right to 

treat each case on its merits, this document sets out its primary policy 

position.  

All key staff at current and prospective employers should review this 

policy document and appraise themselves as regards their own 

employer’s position, including the potential financial and operational 

implications. 

Any questions or queries arising from this policy should, in the first 

instance, be directed to: 

Debbie Sharp 

 

Pensions Administration Manager 

debbie.sharp@shropshire.gov.uk   

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

4 

 

2. An LGPS employer’s lifetime 

In order to provide some context to this Employer Events Framework, 

set out below are the major stages of an employer’s lifetime within the 

Local Government Pension Scheme. 

Senior staff at each employer should familiarise themselves with these 

high level stages.  Depending on the specific circumstances applying to 

an employer at each stage, there will be associated operational and 

financial implications as regards its interests with the pension fund. 

 

 

Depending on the lifetime of the employer, they may go through a 

number of triennial valuations and subsequent monitoring activities 

before reaching a final event that would trigger their exit from the Fund. 

The remainder of this policy paper discusses each of the stages noted 

above, and sets out some detail of these stages and the Fund’s primary 

policy position and approach.   The Administering Authority however, 

reserves the right to treat each case on its merits which may involve 

alternatives where justified.  

 

 

 



 

 

5 

 

3. Joining the Fund 

Scheme Employers 

All Scheme Employers (as defined under Schedule 2 Part 1 of the 

Regulations) are entitled to join the Fund under the Regulations.  These 

bodies include tax raising bodies, those funded by central government 

(academies and colleges) and universities (reliant on non-government 

income). 

Other Scheme Employers (specifically those defined under Schedule 2 

Part 2 of the Regulations) can designate eligibility to join the scheme for 

individuals or groups, where they pass a resolution to that effect.  A copy 

of this resolution will be required by the Administering Authority at the 

outset, and any subsequent amendments to the resolution should also 

be provided.  

Academy conversions 

Where a school has elected to convert to Academy status, the Fund’s 

policy is for the new Academy to inherit the school’s share of the historic 

local authority deficit prior to its conversion.  This is in accordance with 

the Department for Education (DfE) guidance issued when the Academy 

conversion programme was extended to cover all schools.  Full details of 

how this is assessed are set out in a later section of this document, as is 

the treatment offered to Academies within Multi-Academy Trusts (MATs). 

Admission bodies 

An admission body is an employer which, if it satisfies certain regulatory 

criteria, can apply to participate in the Fund.  

Admission bodies can join the Fund if: 

• They provide a service for a scheme employer as a result of an 

outsourcing (formerly known as Transferee Admission Bodies) 

• They provide some form of public service and their funding in most 

cases derives primarily from local or central government. In reality they 

take many different forms but essentially they are “not for profit” 

organisations (formerly known as Community Admission Bodies).  

If its application is accepted by the Administering Authority, it will then 

enter into an “admission agreement”. The admission agreement sets out 

the conditions of participation of the admission body, in accordance with 

the Regulations, including which employees (or categories of 

employees) are eligible to become members of the Fund. 



 

 

6 

 

Any specific arrangements outside the normal regulations agreed 

between the letting authority and the new entity will be covered in the 

commercial agreement.  This includes but is not limited to cases where 

pension costs are shared, or indeed fully passed back to the original 

employer.  The Administering Authority must be informed at the outset of 

any specific arrangements entered into.  This may result in 

increased/more detailed requirements when providing member data to 

the Administering Authority. 

Indemnifying bonds and/or guarantors 

All admission bodies will be required, in accordance with Regulations, to 

provide an indemnifying bond from an appropriate third party.  This bond 

must be actuarially assessed to the satisfaction of the Administering 

Authority, and kept under regular review. 

In circumstances where a scheme employer within the Fund has 

formally agreed to act as guarantor to an admission body, the 

Regulations allow for a bond not to be put in place.  The Fund’s primary 

position on this is that a bond should still be put in place in order to 

better protect all employers within the Fund (including the guarantor).   

The Fund’s view is that the frequency of the review of any bond amount 

should be: 

G U A R A N T E E  A R R A N G E M E N T  F R E Q U E N C Y  O F  B O N D  R E V I E W  

Admission body with no guarantor Annual reassessment  

Admission body with a guarantor Triennial reassessment (carried out as part of the 

valuation) 

 

Initial funding calculations 

Essentially there are two main approaches used for new employers 

depending on their specific circumstances: 

• Fully funded at the start: the value of the liabilities of the 

transferring group of members is assessed and the assets that are 

notionally reallocated within the Fund from the original employer to the 

new employer body are equal to this amount, meaning no initial surplus 

or deficit.   

• Partially funded at the start: where the assets notionally 

reallocated are less than the value of the liabilities transferring.   The 

method of assessment for this initial deficit can vary depending on the 

specifics of each case.   



 

 

7 

 

(As noted earlier, bespoke commercial arrangements can also be 

entered into between the new entity and the letting authority which may 

be different to these and must be communicated to the Administering 

Authority.) 

It is most common for admission bodies to join the Fund on a “fully 

funded” basis.   There can be exceptions to this where an outsourcing 

body has structured the commercial arrangements such that the new 

body takes on a deficit. Academies will also normally take on a deficit at 

inception, and their treatment is set out in a later section. 

Initial contribution rate assessment 

The initial contribution rate assessment will be an actuarial calculation of 

the future service pension cost that applies appropriate to the members 

transferring to the new entity.   This assessment will take account of:  

• The pay levels of the transferring group (and so the implied 

employee contribution rate) 

• The timing the benefits are expected to fall due (depending on any 

applicable transitional protections for certain members) 

• Whether the new body will be open, or closed to new entrants 

• Whether any funding deficit is ultimately transferred and the period 

over which it is expected to repay that deficit.  

Risk assessment 

The Regulations require that an actuarial risk assessment is carried out 

to the satisfaction of the Administering Authority. It is this assessment 

that would inform the required indemnifying bond that is discussed in an 

earlier section.      

As a minimum, the Fund would require any bond amount to cover any 

assessed funding deficit as at the time the risk assessment is performed.   

Added to this would be any potential early retirement strain costs that 

could arise on the premature (or normal) termination of the body.  These 

would arise on the grounds that on redundancy, certain members could 

be eligible for the immediate payment of benefits on an unreduced basis. 

It is recognised that the parties involved may wish to depart from the 

above default position on commercial grounds, and the Fund would be 

open to considering alternatives on a case-by-case basis. 

 



 

 

8 

 

Academy deficit assessment 

As noted above, for new academies the approach taken will be that a 

deficit will be transferred to the new academy, unless a formal decision 

to the contrary is made by the local authority.  

The Fund’s policy is for this transferring deficit to be calculated as the 

capitalised amount of deficit funding contributions (based on the local 

authority deficit recovery period) the school would have made to the 

Fund had it not converted to academy status.  This deficit amount is 

subject to a limit to ensure that the asset share of the new academy is 

not less than zero. 

The details below show an illustrative example of an academy 

conversion: 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

The final table below shows how this may result in wide ranging funding 

levels, depending on the profile of the transferring members following 

the conversion. Transferring groups of older members, and/or those with 

Overall assets (£k) 750,000 

Overall liabilities (£k) 900,000 

Overall deficit (£k) 150,000 

Funding level 83%

Overall payroll (£k p.a.) 90,000    

Deficit contribution (£k p.a.) (payable for 22 years) 7,000      

Deficit contribution expressed as a % of pay 7.8%

Original Council position (including the school before conversion 

to Academy)

Payroll being transferred to new academy 

(£k p.a.):
5,000      

Residual payroll (£k p.a.): 85,000    

Split of payroll between Council and new academy

Deficit contributions payable (£k p.a.):

   - in respect of all remaining staff prior to transfer (7.8% of £5m) 390         

   - in respect of remaining staff prior to transfer (7.8% of £85m) 6,610      

Total post conversion (same total as pre-conversion) 7,000      

Implied deficit transferred (390 / 7,000 x 150,000) (£k): 8,400      

Implied residual deficit (6,610 / 7,000 x 150,000) (£k): 141,600 

Total deficit (unchanged pre and post conversion) (£k) 150,000 

Split of deficit and deficit contributions between Council and new 

academy



 

 

9 

 

long service will, on average, have higher liabilities.  As noted earlier, 

deficits will be limited such that the asset share of the new academy is 

not less than zero. 

 

Multi Academy Trusts 

Multi Academy Trusts (MATS) are groups of academies managed and 

operated by one proprietor. The employer of staff in academies is the 

proprietor of the Academy Trust and not the individual academy within 

the Trust. It is therefore the proprietor who is the employer for LGPS 

purposes making the MAT legally responsible for staff across all schools 

in the group. 

In cases where numerous academies are operated by the same 

managing Trust, the Fund’s initial position is to maintain separate 

records for each of the constituent academies.  This means that each 

constituent academy may have varying contribution requirements 

according to their own circumstances/membership.  Any new academies 

joining an existing MAT in this case would have their own funding 

position and contribution requirements assessed separately. 

However, if desired, the Fund would be willing to allow a decision to 

combine.  This would be a one-off and irrevocable choice of the MAT as 

at commencement.   If a combined basis decision were to be made, for 

the purposes of the pension fund, the MAT (including all constituent 

academies) would be treated as a single combined employer.  This 

decision would have implications for all future actuarial calculations for 

the MAT; an overall funding position and the same “average” 

contribution requirement would to apply to all constituent academies.  It 

also means pension fund accounting under FRS101 / FRS102 / IAS19 

could only be produced for the entire body.   Any new academies joining 

an existing MAT in the Fund would contribute at the grouped employer 

contribution rate already established for the MAT.  This would be next 

Low liability example High liability example

£k £k

Liabilities transferred 9,000      Liabilities transferred 20,000    

Deficit transferred 8,400      Deficit transferred 8,400      

Assets 600         Assets 11,600    

Funding level 7% Funding level 58%

Deficit contributions (£k p.a.) 390         Deficit contributions (£k p.a.) 390         

Assets, liabilities, funding levels and deficit contributions for the new academy



 

 

10 

 

reviewed at the triennial valuation (see next section), taking experience 

into account including any new deficit taken on when new academies 

join.     

  

4. Triennial actuarial valuation 

In accordance with the Regulations, every three years the Administering 

Authority is required to have a full actuarial valuation carried out by its 

appointed Fund Actuary.   Not only is this required by law, it also serves 

as a critically important governance tool when running the pension fund.   

The Fund Actuary is required to assess the financial health of the Fund 

as a whole by quantifying the value of the liabilities of the Fund (i.e. 

benefits due to be paid in the future) compared to the assets held (the 

ratio of its assets to liabilities is often referred to as the solvency level).   

The Administering Authority’s long-term objective is for the Fund to 

achieve a 100% solvency level over a reasonable time period and then 

maintain sufficient assets in order for it to pay all benefits arising as they 

fall due.   

This assessment is repeated for each separate employer within the 

Fund and the employer contributions (primary and secondary rates) are 

adjusted appropriately to achieve that long-term objective in accordance 

with the Fund’s Funding Strategy Statement (FSS).   The Regulations 

also require that employer contributions are set in order to achieve long-

term cost efficiency, meaning that they must not be set at a level that is 

likely to give rise to additional costs in the future. 

Factors that influence the actuarial valuation results 

A number of factors affect the valuation results emerging and these 

include but are not limited to those listed below.  Employers should 

familiarise themselves with this section noting that decisions taken by 

them and/or the members can have an impact on the valuation results 

emerging: 

R E G U L A T O R Y  /  

G O V E R N A N C E  

M A R K E T  /  E C O N O M I C   M E M B E R S H I P  E V E N T S  

A N D  E X P E R I E N C E  

Scheme design changes Observed and expected levels of 

CPI inflation 

Observed mortality experience and 

any changes to future life 

expectancies (and rate of 

improvement) 



 

 

11 

 

R E G U L A T O R Y  /  

G O V E R N A N C E  

M A R K E T  /  E C O N O M I C   M E M B E R S H I P  E V E N T S  

A N D  E X P E R I E N C E  

Cost Management adjustments as a 

result of experience analysis 

performed by the Government 

Actuary’s Department (GAD) 

Investment returns delivered from 

assets held by the Fund 

Take-up of the 50:50 scheme 

Underlying changes to pensions 

landscape (e.g. changes to State 

Pension Age) 

Expected future investment returns 

to be delivered by Fund assets  

Incidence of any ill health or early 

retirement benefits (including on 

redundancy terms) 

  Salary growth experience vs 

assumption 

  Aggregation of any previously 

accrued benefits 

  Take-up of tax-free cash option 

 

The triennial actuarial valuation is a process that means the employer 

contribution requirements can and do change from time to time.   

Employers should be aware that the contribution requirements are not 

fixed.    

Of course commercial arrangements can be put in place between 

admission bodies and the original body such that variations are shared, 

or indeed fully passed back to the original employer (known as “pass 

through” arrangements).   These can be specific to each case, but the 

fundamental points related to this are: 

• It is vital for the Administering Authority to be provided with full 

details of any bespoke commercial arrangements, and 

• pension costs do change for many reasons and employers should 

be aware of this. 

 

5. Monitoring and planning for exit 

Employer monitoring 

The Fund adopts a regular monitoring and review plan to ensure that it 

can always act proactively to act in the best interests of all pension fund 

employers.  This is illustrated by the policy adopted for bond reviews and 

their frequency, but also the Fund will be carrying out high level 

covenant (employer financial strength) assessments. 

 



 

 

12 

 

Covenant Assessments 

An employer’s covenant underpins its legal obligation and ability to meet 

its financial responsibilities now and in the future.  The strength of 

covenant depends upon the robustness of the legal agreements in place 

and the likelihood that the employer can meet them. The covenant 

effectively underwrites the risks to which the Fund is exposed, including 

underfunding, longevity, investment and market forces. 

An assessment of employer covenant focuses on determining the 

following: 

• Type of body and its origins 

• Nature and enforceability of legal agreements 

• Whether there is a bond in place and the level of the bond 

• Whether a more accelerated recovery plan should be enforced 

• Whether there is an option to call in contingent assets 

• Is there a need for monitoring of ongoing and termination funding 

ahead of the next actuarial valuation? 

The strength of employer covenant can be subject to substantial 

variation over relatively short periods of time and, as such, regular 

monitoring and assessment is vital. The employers’ covenant will be 

assessed and monitored objectively in a proportionate manner, and an 

employer’s ability to meet their obligations in the short and long term will 

be considered when determining its funding strategy.   

Risk Criteria 

The assessment criteria upon which an employer should be reviewed 

could include: 

• Nature and prospects of the employer’s industry 

• Employer’s competitive position and relative size 

• Management ability and track record 

• Financial policy of the employer 

• Profitability, cashflow and financial flexibility 

• Employer’s credit rating 

• Position of the economy as a whole 



 

 

13 

 

Not all of the above would be applicable to assessing employer risk 

within the Fund; rather a proportionate approach to consideration of the 

above criteria would be made, with further consideration given to the 

following: 

• The scale of obligations to the pension scheme relative to the size 

of the employer’s operating cashflow 

• The relative priority placed on the pension scheme compared to 

corporate finances 

• An estimate of the amount which might be available to the scheme 

on insolvency of the employer as well as the likelihood of that 

eventuality. 

Assessing employer covenant 

The employer covenant will be assessed from time to time objectively 

and its ability to meet its obligations will be viewed in the context of the 

Fund’s exposure to risk and volatility based on publically available 

information and/or information provided by the employer.  The 

monitoring of covenant strength along with the funding position 

(including on the termination basis) enables the Fund to anticipate and 

pre-empt employer funding issues and thus adopt a proactive approach.    

In order to accurately monitor employer covenant, it may be necessary 

for research to be carried out into employers’ backgrounds and, in 

addition, for those employers to be contacted to gather as much 

information as possible. Focus will be placed on the regular monitoring 

of employers with a proactive rather than reactive view to mitigating risk.  

Covenant risk management 

The focus of the Fund’s risk management is the identification and 

treatment of the risks and it will be a continuous and evolving process 

which runs throughout the Fund’s strategy.  Mechanisms that will be 

explored with certain employers, as necessary, will include but are not 

limited to the following: 

1. Parental Guarantee and/or Indemnifying Bond 

2. Transfer to a more prudent actuarial basis (e.g. the termination 

basis) 

3. Shortened recovery periods and increased cash contributions 

4. Managed exit strategies 



 

 

14 

 

5. Contingent assets and/or other security such as escrow accounts. 

 

Planning for exit 

Under the Regulations, the Administering Authority has the power to 

revisit any previously certified contributions if it becomes of the opinion 

that a change in circumstances means it is likely to exit from the Fund.   

The Administering Authority’s opinion of this scenario will be essentially 

driven by the following considerations and these will be in addition to the 

scheduled end date of any admission agreement: 

E V E N T  C O M M E N T  

Notification from the employer of its intention to 

exit (or if it is expecting to reduce the number of 

members) 

Dialogue will be entered into, and work 

commenced on managing a future exit payment 

A more than 50% reduction in the number of 

active members between accounting period end 

dates 

This would trigger a dialogue between the 

Administering Authority and the employer to 

understand the reasons for the change.  This 

may lead to planning for exit work including a 

review of contribution requirements 

If there is a reduction of active members to 

leaving only two* 

This would initially trigger a dialogue between the 

Administering Authority and the employer to 

understand the underlying position.  It is highly 

likely that planning for exit work would 

commence including a review of contribution 

requirements. 

 

*the Administering Authority would treat each of these cases on its merits e.g. employers 

with very small numbers to start with would be considered appropriately in that context.  

 

6. Exit from the fund 

Termination Policy 

When an employer becomes an exiting employer (for example the last 

active leaving, or an admission agreement terminates for any reason), 

the employer becomes an exiting employer under the Regulations.  The 

Fund is then required to obtain an actuarial valuation of that employer’s 

liabilities in respect of benefits of the exiting employer’s current and 

former employees along with a termination contribution certificate. 

It is the Fund’s policy position that such an actuarial valuation will be 

commissioned for all cases, unless a decision is taken to the contrary 



 

 

15 

 

specific to a particular case.   In all cases where this valuation is carried 

out, regardless of whether the assessment reveals a deficit or a surplus, 

a termination contribution certificate will be issued by the Fund Actuary. 

The following approaches will be used by the Fund Actuary to assess 

the required exit payment that may be due.   The approach will be based 

on the most recent actuarial valuation assumptions, updated to the 

cessation date, and adjusted for the specific circumstances.  Specific 

differences in treatment between certain groups of employer (usually 

admission bodies) are as defined below: 

Employers with no guarantor in 

the Fund who joined prior to 1 

July 2012 

Employers with no guarantor in 

the Fund who joined after 1 July 

2012  

Employers with a guarantor 

within the Fund 

Using a corporate bond basis, 

with the discount rate based on 

the long dated Sterling AA 

Corporate Bond yield of 

appropriate duration, and 

allowing for a more prudent 

assessment of future mortality 

trends. 

Using a “least risk” funding 

basis based on government 

bonds of appropriate duration, 

and allowing for a more prudent 

assessment of future mortality 

trends. 

Using an “ongoing” valuation 

basis so consistent with the 

funding target assumptions. 

 

Managing the exit payment 

The Regulations give power to the Fund to manage the arrangements 

relating to exit payments.  These are: 

1. To issue a “suspension notice” for a period up to 3 years, if, in the 

reasonable opinion of the Administering Authority, the employer is likely 

to have one or more active members join the Fund within the period of 

the notice. 

2. To mutually agree an instalment repayment plan over a 

reasonable period into the future. 

The Fund will consider these options on a case-by-case basis after 

entering into a dialogue with an employer. In principle, however, the 

Fund’s general position is: 

• for exit payments to be paid immediately and in full as they fall 

due, and  

• any “suspension notice” would only apply for a maximum period as 

remains to the next triennial valuation.  If a suspension notice is applied, 

any contributions not related to pay (e.g. lump sum payments as set on 



 

 

16 

 

the Rates and Adjustments Certificate) will continue to be paid to the 

Fund as certified. 

7. Employer costs and charges 
 

All employers that participate within the Fund will be required to make 

contributions to it in accordance with the underlying Regulations.   

Specifically, employers will be required to: 

• deduct contributions from employees’ pay correctly after 

determining the appropriate employee contribution rate (in accordance 

with the Regulations) 

• pay all employer future service and deficit contributions, as 

determined by the Fund Actuary, promptly by the due date 

• make additional contributions as required in respect of, for 

example, augmentation of Fund benefits and early retirement strains, 

and 

• pay any professional fees as determined by the Fund that are 

incurred on account of actions or events applicable to that employer, and  

• pay any fines or sanctions issued to it in accordance with the 

Fund’s Pension Administration Strategy Statement or underlying 

legislation. 

 

 

 


























	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	8 Insurance Linked Securities Report (Exempted by Category 3)
	8.  EXEMPT - Appendix A Aon Hewitt Manager Selection Report
	8.  EXEMPT - Appendix B Biographies, Suggested Questions, Performance and Fee Proposals
	8.  EXEMPT - Appendix C Aon Hewitt Manager Opinions

	11 Property Debt Report (Exempted by Category 3)
	11.  EXEMPT - Appendix A Aon Hewitt Manager Selection Report
	11.  EXEMPT - Appendix B Biographies, Fee Proposals and Manager Questions
	11.  EXEMPT - Appendix C Aon Hewitt Manager Opinions

	12 Grant Thornton - The Audit Plan for Shropshire County Pension Fund 2017/18 and Informing The Audit Risk Assessment for Shropshire County Pension Fund 2017/18
	12.  Informing The Audit Risk Assessment for Shropshire County Pension Fund 2017-18

	14 Corporate Governance Monitoring
	14.  Appendix A Manager Voting Activity Reports (October - December 2017)
	14.  Appendix B BMO Global Asset Management Responsible Engagement Overlay Reports (October - December 2017)

	15 Pension Fund Treasury Strategy 2018/19
	15.  Appendix A Specified Investment Schedule

	16 Pensions Administration Monitoring
	16.  Appendix A Performance Chart
	16.  Appendix B The Pensions Regulator - A Quick Guide to Measuring Your Data
	16.  Appendix C The Pensions Regulator - A Quick Guide to Improving Your Data
	16.  Appendix D LGPS Administering Authority Information Note - Contracted-out Reconciliation Pensioner Overpayments June 2017

	17 Employer Events Policy
	17.  Appendix A Employer Events Policy

	19 Exempt Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Exempted by Categories 2 and 3)
	21 Investment Monitoring - Quarter to 31 December 2017 (Exempted by Category 3)
	21.  EXEMPT - Appendix A Investment Monitoring Report to 31 December 2017

	22 New Admission Bodies (Exempted by Category 3)
	23 Record of Breaches (Exempted by Category 3)
	23.  EXEMPT - Appendix A Record of Breaches Log 01 October 2017 - 31 December 2017


